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Committed
to bringing

excellence

to maturity.




Sun Bancorp, Inc. progressed in its
mission to transform the organization
into a community-based commercial
bank focused on building customer
relationships, delivering excellence each
and every day, and providing solutions to
help our clients achieve their dreams.
We refocused our entire organization on
important success factors like growing
core deposits, carefully managing credit
quality, product and service excellence,

loan growth and enhancing fee income.

Further, we are well into our evolution of
becoming a customer-centric organization
with a dynamic sales culture. Our training
and development programs are designed
to provide employees with the skills they
need to deliver on our promise to
customers. We are building a philosophy,
a structure and a team that uses a
consultative sales approach. An approach
based on building relationships with
customers by not just understanding their
needs, but anticipating their needs. We
are building strong bonds with our clients
that lead to lasting, mutually beneficial

relationships.

To be the top performing financial
services provider by exceeding the
expectations of our stakeholders:
shareholders, customers, employees

and the communities we serve.
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Financial Highlights
Years Ended December 31 (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
1 2001
‘ Balance Sheet Data
i Assets $920,855 $743,588 238 %
Loans, net 515,520 406,775 26.7 %
Deposits 573,877 444,566 291 %
Shareholders’ Equity 77,511 62,527 240 %
Earnings Data
; Net Interest Income $ 23,735 $ 21,735 9.2 %
Other Operating Income 9,508 984 866.3 %
1 Other Operating Expenses 20,049 14,095 42.2 %
Net Income 8,350 4,598 81.6 %
Per Share Data
Net Income — Basic $ 1.20 $ 68 76.5 %
Net Income — Diluted 1.20 .68 76.5 %
Dividends Paid .60 .78 (23.1)%
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President’s Message to Shareholders

Last vear, we introduced to you a new management team, a bold
redirection for Sun and an aggressive plan to reach higher and achieve more for
Sun’s stakeholders. Our strategies included a renewed focus on community-based
commercial banking, as well as improved credit quality, sound lending, increased
fee income, core deposit growth and prudent market expansion.

Our progress in each of these areas of focus is clear. Early in 2001,
we announced our acquisitions of Guaranty Bank, headquartered in Wilkes-Barre,
Pennsylvania, and Mellon Bank’s Lewisburg, Lock Haven and Mill Hall, Pennsylvania
branches. These acquisitions complemented our overall corporate strategies, particularly
core deposit growth and prudent market expansion.

The acquisition of Guaranty Bank allowed for our entry into Luzerne
County, an attractive market which Sun had targeted for expansion. Comparatively,
Luzerne County is a $4.7 billion deposit market versus $3.5 billion for Sun’s Snyder, Union,
Northumberland, Clinton and Lycoming County markets. The pairing of Guaranty’s
leadership, employees and community banking philosophy with Sun’s expanded product
line, technology and operational resources has presented the organization with significant

growth opportunities in Luzerne County.

The purchase of Mellon Bank’s Lewisburg branch enhances our presence

in Union County, which is one of the fastest growing counties in Pennsylvania with the
highest median household income level of any of our markets.

Further, the integration of each acquisition into the Sun organization was
smooth with strong customer retention rates.

After thorough review and analysis of our branch network, we decided to divest two
branches in Elk and Cameron Counties. The branches were remote from Sun’s core market, and were using
resources that could be more effectively deployed to regions and programs with greater potential. Sun
reported a net $3.2 million gain after taxes from the branch sales.

Sun introduced two programs designed to diversify our revenue sources and increase
noninterest income. Sun Investment Services, Inc. enables us to offer retail investment products, such as
annuities and murual funds. Sun Abstract & Settlement Services, LLC, was established to provide title
insurance and settlement services. The Sun Abstract program was enhanced through the inclusion of two
large realtors in our market. The affiliation with these realtors has provided both additional fee income
opportunity and mortgage referrals.

QOur acquisitions and new ventures helped Sun achieve record levels of assets, loans, net
interest income, total deposits and core deposits. Fee income increased by 28% as compared to 2000. With
our persistent focus on our priorities and our initiatives planned for 2002, we are confident that these trends
will continue.

We remain diligent and unyielding in our credit philosophy. Consequently, Sun’s credit
quality continues to be strong. Our credit quality performance remains at the best levels of the past 10 years,
despite an overall deterioration of credit quality that has affected the banking industry.

During 2001, we implemented an outreach program focusing on the investment
community. Sun was featured in American Banker, The Wall Street Transcript, The Wall Street Reporter,
The MAC Report, and the local press. We participated in the Mid-Atlantic Super-Community Banking
Conference in November and the Emerald Asset Management Investment Forum in early 2002. Sun also
publicly announced its performance targets for the first time in its history, an indication of our confidence

and commitment.
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Listen, Learn, Share and Deliver

Sun's stock price increased by 20% during 2001, and we set
records in a number of areas, yet we are not satisfied with these results and are
reaching higher and striving for more in 2002. As we continue executing our core
strategies, we embarked on two promising initiatives designed to support those
strategies: Customer Relationship Management and Project Deliver Excellence.

Customer Relationship Management is designed to focus our
teams on retaining and growing our most profitable customer relationships; spending
time and resources on customer segments with the greatest potential; capturing all
aspects of the customer’s financial relationship; and delivering financial expertise,
products and services to our clients seamlessly.

Project Deliver Excellence supports our Customer Relationship
Management strategy and is a process of re-examining every aspect of our
organization to identify opportunities to improve external and internal customer
service and to capitalize on operating efficiencies.

‘ We approach 2002 with enthusiasm, confidence and
determination. We will diligently pursue our key strategies: superior credit quality,
core deposit growth; quality loan growth; prudent expansion, diversifying revenue
sources; and increasing fee income. We invite you to join our pursuit of profitable

customer relationships, operational and service excellence, and record-setting

performance. 7 g

bert J. McCormack
President & CEO
March 13, 2002
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Customer Relationship Management

Building Customer Relationships

During 2001, Sun embraced its decision to re-commit to the community-
focused commercial banking philosophy that had made it so successful in the mid-1980s. As part
of that commitment, we recognized the importance of attracting, retaining and growing strong
customer relationships. We are pursuing a course of action that positions us to effectively
execute our customer relationship management strategy.

With Customer Relationship Management, our intent is to develop profitable customer
relationships based on identifying and anricipating clients’ financial needs, sharing of information and
expertise, delivery of solutions and ongoing communication, service excellence and relationship building
actions. There is a sense of purpose and nobility in this process as it enables us to help our customers achieve
their dreams. Dreams of owning a home, expanding a business, sending a child to college, enjoying

retirement.

Filling a Gap in the Market

Sun occupies an attractive position in our marketplace. Many banks have grown larger
through consolidations in the industry and have become less accessible to smaller and mid-size businesses
as well as consumers. Smaller banks continue to be challenged by lack of resources needed to bring more
sophisticated products and services to the market. Sun is filling that gap by focusing on integrating its lines
of business, being a premier community bank and most importantly, building closer and stronger

relationships with customers.

Segmentation

We also recognize the risk of trying to be all things to all people, a pitfall that many
organizations fail to realize. We operate with limited resources and must deploy them to have the greatest
impact. Failure to carefully target our human, financial, marketing and operational resources would simply
result in diluting our effectiveness. Instead, we began the process of segmenting and analyzing our markets
and our current customer base. The segmenration strategy Sun has implemented is one designed specifically
for financial services providers and moves beyond demographics into financial product usage including
average balances, delivery channel preferences, propensity to purchase specific products, as well as lifestyle

and media preferences.

.21 Annual Report




Building Bonds with Customers

SunBank representatives

observe asiJoe Malloy of
Tulgéh%cken Spring Water
demonstrates the robotic
equipment that off-loads
empty hotties and on-loads
filled bottles for shipping.

Through this segmentation process we are able to identify the customer and market
segments that offer us the greatest opportunity. The value of our segmentation strategy is that it helps
us: guide the activities of our sales teams by telling them the segments on which to spend their time and
resources; target our marketing efforts to make appealing offers to customers and prospects that will improve
response rates, increase share of wallet and enhance customer satisfaction; evaluate our levels of penetration
within our market area so that we identify gaps, research the reasons for the gaps and make changes to
capitalize on untapped opportunities; build products, services, delivery channels and service standards that
appeal to our priority segments. Once we've identified our priority segments and where we want to focus, the

key becomes executing our customer relationship management strategy.

Integration and Seamless Delivery

The cornerstone of our customer relationship management approach is integration of our
financial services and seamless delivery to our clients. Functionally, this means that we have specialists in a
variety of areas from cash management to personal banking to commercial lending to wealth management.
The crucial element is bringing this team of specialists to our clients to deliver our financial expertise,
products and services in an integrated and seamless manner.

We do this through our Relationship Teams. Sun has eight regional relationship teams
comprised of specialists from our lines of business. The teams meet monthly to review customer
relationships, identify customer needs, plan future contacts and calls on customers, assign responsibilities,

and review results of the prior month’s plans. Clearly, the focus is on the customer.

Becoming Trusted Advisors and Partners

Sun is in the midst of an evolution from a traditional product sales approach to a
consultative sales approach, which is much more conducive to building long-lasting client relationships.
We are striving to become trusted financial advisors and valued partners with our clients.

This is not an easy task and while we have begun the process of fundamentally redesigning
the way we do business, we also realize that our people are crucial to our success. Our employees must have a
clear vision of what we want to accomplish and be engaged in the process. This is happening through
communication, reinforcement, and alignment of all aspects of our company including our incentive programs,
our hiring and interviewing techniques, our training and development programs. Our journey toward becoming

trusted financial advisors has begun, and we invite you to experience the transition during 2002.
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Commercial Banking

The synergies that began three years ago in Sun’s commercial banking
group continued in 2001. We experienced robust loan growth coupied with sound credit
quality. We added talented relationship managers tc our already dynamic team. In addition,
Sun attained SBA Certified Lender status, enhanced our cash management services,
refined our risk based pricing model, and established an internal loan review process.

As we've progressed in our efforts to build a sales culture, we also implemented a variable
pay program that compensates and rewards our relationship managers based on

attainment of goals.

Quality Loan Growth

Sun’s approach to commercial lending is built on a conservative foundation:
uncompromised credit quality standards, targeted marketing to prospects with the greatest potential,
a talented and energetic team of relationship managers, and sound pricing principles. Under this
strategy, Sun has grown its commercial loan portfolio by 21% over 2000 and by 96% since 1998.

We closed 2001 with a commercial loan portfolio of $205 million.

We take great pride in the fact that our credit quality remains near the best levels
of the last ten years, with the lowest level of net loans charged off in the last five years. It is even more
meaningful to note that we have achieved this strong performance during a period when much of the
financial services industry is experiencing a downward turn in credit quality.

We will remain diligent in our lending discipline, focused on industries and

companies that are the most profitable prospects, and will prudently grow our loan portfolio.

A Dynamig, Vital Team

Once again in 2001, Sun strengthened its commercial team by attracting experienced,
knowledgeable and energetic relationship managers. Our acquisition of Guaranty Bank immediately
benefited Sun with the addition of the Luzerne County commercial banking team. Additionally, we
continued to benefit from banking consolidations in our markets. The new team members share our
unyielding commitment to credit quality, have sound sales skills, a competitive spirit, and have quickly
made a contribution to our organization. The entire team is enthusiastic about Sun’s competitive
advantages in the marketplace including our local decision-making, matrix lending process and integrated
approach to customer relationships.

As we have attracted this talented team, we have also made the transition to pay for
performance programs that provide for more “at risk” compensation. Our new variable pay programs apply
not only to the commercial team, but also include the executive group, retail branch management team, and
wealth management sales force. With the variable pay programs, additional compensation is atrained by

reaching sales and performance goals.

Effective Evaluation and Pricing

A basic tenet of Sun’s lending philosophy is to be appropriately compensated for our
credit risk. We refined and fully implemented a proprietary risk-based pricing methodology in 2001.
The pricing model adjusts the rate scenario by integrating credit risk and market risk considerations

and further modifies pricing based on the client’s total financial relationship with Sun. Fixed rate
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Dynamic, Knowledgeable, Energetic

Talented relationship

managers, local

decision-making,

largest local lending

authority, relationship

focused.

commercial loans include prepayment premiums, again ensuring that we are

compensated for the market risk associated with our lending practices.

SBA Certified Lender

Sun has been vocal in its desire to establish a niche in SBA
lending, and we progressed toward that goal in 2001 by attaining SBA Certified
Lender status. As a certified lender, we receive a commitment from the Small
Business Administration to process loan applications in three business days. This
empowers us to provide quicker loan decisions and a higher level of service to our
clients. Sun approved more than $3 million in guaranteed loans for the SBA fiscal

year 2001, and we are striving to reach Preferred Lender status in 2002.

The Bank of Choice

The commercial banking division is poised for continued Commercial
Loan Growth

success in 2002. We have one of the highest performing commetcial sales forces in

our markets, an integrated approach to serving our customers, the products and 200

(in $ millions)

services for businesses of all sizes, the credit discipline, and we have the desire to
win the business. 150 || ||
We have earned a reputation as the bank of choice for the

commercial market in Central and Northeastern Pennsylvania, and we are wo L | L
determined to retain that reputation for years to come.
501 |-

98] 991 00j OL
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(in § millions)

Diversifying Revenue Source

Fee-Based
Income

TR
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Increasing Sun’s noninterest income and diversifying our revenue sources
continues to be a priority. We made significant progress in 2001 with the introduction of retail
investment services and title insurance as well as enhancements in our wealth management
division. As we have evaluated innovative sources of revenue, we carefully analyzed any potential
risk factors and considered whether they aligned well with our customer relationship building
strategies. We are striving to be a financial services provider that can meet our clients’ total
financial needs, and our new fee based lines of business have helped expand the options we
have available to customers.

The success of these programs is apparent. Noninterest income increased 28% in 2001 as

compared to 2000, and we expect this growth trend to continue in 2002.

Retail Investment Services

Through Sun Investment Services, Inc., our retail investment sales program, we are
providing our customers with access to licensed investment professionals; products like mutual funds and
annuities; and, most importantly, solutions to issues like planning for retirement, funding children’s college
education, and reducing tax liability. The program has been embraced by our employees, has deepened our

relationships with customers, and exceeded our financial expectations in 2001. We are confident that retail

investment sales is an area of growth for Sun and will thrive in 2002.

Real Estate Services

Sun Abstract and Settlement Services, our joint venture for providing title insurance and
real estate settlement services, was formed in January. Through Sun Abstract, we offer a comprehensive selection
of real estate bundled services includihg title insurance, home warranties, flood certificates and settlement
services. By offering these services, we are able to make the home buying process more convenient for customers,
and we provide them with the resources to protect what is typically the largest investment they will make in a
lifetime. Sun Abstract has been well-received, and, as with Sun Investment Service, has exceeded our

expectations. We recently expanded the offering of Sun Abstract services into the Luzerne County market and




Expanding Customer Choices

believe there is tremendous growth opportunity in that market. Additionally, Relationship Teams meet
monthly to facilitate customer
relationship building and
integration among our lines
of husiness.

two of the largest realty companies in our markets have become investors in

Sun Abstract, which further enhances the potential in 2002.

Wealth Management and Private Banking

Late in 2001, we recruited Richard P. Masucci to lead
our wealth management initiatives. Mr. Masucci is an experienced,
knowledgeable leader with a proven record in starting and growing trust
services in a community bank environment. Sun was also able to attract
William V. O’Connor as sales manager of wealth management.
Mr. O’Connor is a talented relationship manager, again with proven skills.
In the short time since this new wealth management leadership team has
joined Sun, they have made considerable improvements. These
enhancements include attracting additional talent to the existing wealth
management team, using targeted marketing and focused sales efforts,
improving the employee benefits program offered to commercial clients,
and upgrading the entire wealth management product line. Our wealth
management and private banking group is moving forward quickly with a

clear business plan, strong leadership, and an outstanding team.
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Delivering Excellence

Project Deliver Excellence, which
was formulated in late 2001 and implemented in early
2002, is one of Sun’s most exciting initiatives. It has
capiured the interest of industry trade journals and the
analyst community, and has ignited enthusiasm
throughout our company. Project Deliver Excellence is
a corporate initiative to streamline and improve
processes to support the bank’s commitment to cus-
tomer relationship management and service quality.
The program is being led by Chief Operating Officer

PR ﬁ'}f.wm Cdid it

Jonathan J. Hullick, and is focused on identifying
opportunities to increase income, reduce expenses,
and improve customer service.

Project Deliver Excellence provides a
structured method of examining every aspect of our
organization and asking questions such as why do we perform
this process, what value does it add, and is there a better way

to do it. The goal is to become an organization that is

customer-centric while improving efficiency and reaching

for excellence in all we do.

A Multi-Functional Team Effort

We started Project Deliver Excellence by bringing together line representation from
virtually every area of the bank. The 25 task force members come from departments that include retail
banking, commercial banking, wealth management, deposit operations, loan operations, marketing, human
resources, finance, and information technology. Team members are line managers and staff members: the
people who use the processes daily, see the opportunities and challenges first hand, and who often have the
best ideas for improving a company.

The task force meets weekly for approximately two to three hours. Every week the
group raises one or more issues. Each issue is presented, discussed briefly and a decision is made whether to
pursue it or not. If the issue is determined to have merit, a team of two people is assigned to research,
evaluate and make recommendations regarding that issue. The team generally has one to two weeks to
research the issue and make recommendations. The team then presents their findings and recommendations,
and the task force votes on the recommendations and moves to the implementation stage.

Among the early successes of Project Deliver Excellence is the implementation of check

safekeeping and a program to reduce CD interest expense while avoiding negative customer repercussions.

Generating Ideas from Within

Another aspect of Project Deliver Excellence is the Idea Program. The Idea Program
evolved from our recognition that great ideas can come from any person, at any level and in any position
within our organization. We started the Idea Program to encourage and reward employees for generating
ideas that complement the Project Deliver Excellence mission of increasing income, reducing expenses

and improving customer service.
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Establishing Higher Standards

When an idea is submitted, the task force “Clearly no group can as an entity

assesses it within one week. If the Project Deliver Excellence Task

Force accepts the idea, it is channeled to the finance department create ideas. Only individuals

for analysis. Following the financial analysis, the task force issues
a final decision. Sun also implemented a process to reward and can do this. A group of
recognize employees who submit ideas. Employees are rewarded at

various levels based on the impact of the idea to the organization. individuals may, however,
The Idea Program is in its initial stages, but has already generated

stimulate one another in the
valuable ideas and enthusiasm throughout the company.

Setting a Standard for Excellence creation of ideas.”
With Project Deliver Excellence, the name Esall 1. Green
may imply a project with a defined start date and a defined
completion date. While that is true with the issues raised through
Project Deliver Excellence, our intent is that the program will
establish a higher standard for excellence that is adopted
throughout our company and that the generation of new ideas,

better processes and critical thinking will be endless.
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Location Map

Corporate Headquarters
Selinsgrove

SunBank Branches
Hughesville
Lewisburg-Downtown
Lewisburg-Plaza 15
Lock Haven
Loyalsock
Middleburg

Mill Hall
Montoursville
Newberry

New Berlin
Northumberland
Selinsgrove
Shamaokin
Shamokin Dam
Squire Hayes
Sunbury
Watsontown
Williamsport

South Williamsport

Guaranty Bank Branches
Glen Lyon

Mountain Top

Nanticoke

Pikes Creek

Wilkes-Barre

Key:

© Corporate Headquarters
Selinsgrove

© SunBank Branches

© Guaranty Branches

SunBancorp Inc.

Corporate Highlights

> Conversion to SunBank corporate identity.

> Formation of Sun Abstract and Settlement Service, LLC,

joint venture to offer bundled real estate services.

Introduction of retail investment services through Sun
Investment Services, Inc.

Successful conversion and integration of three Mellon
Bank branches and Guaranty Bank, N.A. into the Sun
organization.

Richard P. Masucci and William V. O'Connor join Sun’s
Wealth Management and Private Banking division.

Cash management product line is enhanced and business
checking products are redesigned.

Customer Relationship Management strategy is introduced
and Relationship Teams are formed.

Project Deliver Excellence is unveiled and has early
successes.

Emporium and Johnsonburg branches are sold.

Sun achieves record levels of assets, total deposits, total
loans, net interest income and number of customers.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In Thousands, Except for Share Data)

December 31,

Assets

Cash and due from banks : $ 24,125 $ 13,138
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 20,858 2,139
Total cash and cash equivalents 44,983 15,277

Investment securities 305,612 290,513
Loans, net 515,520 406,775
Bank premises and equipment, net 14,462 10,895
Intangible asset, goodwill, net 14,018 8,682
Intangible asset, core deposit intangible, net 8,755 —
Accrued interest 5,063 3,331
Other assets 12,442 8,115

Total assets $920,855 $743,588

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing $ 57,990 $ 39,164
Interest-bearing 515,887 405,402
Total deposits 573,877 444 566

Short-term borrowings 22,138 9,582
Other borrowed funds 222,000 222,000
Subordinated debentures 20,444 —
Accrued interest and other liabilities 4,885 4913

Total liabilities 843,344 681,061

Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, no par value per share;

20,000,000 authorized shares; Issued

7,236,251 in 2001 and 7,227,093 in 2000 83,565 81,632
Retained earnings (deficit) (6,961) (11,177
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 2,069 {1,591)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 93,417 shares in 2001

and 566,440 shares in 2000 (1,162) {6,337)

Total shareholders’ equity 77,511 62,527
Total fiabilities and shareholders’ equity $920,855 $743,588

SunBancorp Inc. 14 2001 Annual Report See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




(In Thousands, Except for Net Income Per Share )

Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees on loans $38,603 $33,964 $29,841
Income from available for sale securities:

Taxable 17,089 16,805 14,642

Tax exempt 1,137 967 1,818

Dividends 1,520 1,396 997
Interest on deposits in banks and other financial institutions 1,345 428 156
Total interest and dividend income 59,694 53,560 47,454
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits 21,164 18,075 14,880
Interest on short-term borrowings 430 853 843
Interest on other borrowed funds 12,787 12,897 10,507
Interest on subordinated debentures 1,578 — —
Total interest expense 35,959 31,825 26,230
Net interest income 23,735 21,735 21,224
Provision for loan and lease l0sses 1,500 2,500 1,925
et interest income after provision for loan and lease losses 22,235 19,235 19,299
Other operating income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,803 1,315 1,213
Trust income 745 897 722
Net securities gains (losses} 844 (1,955) 1,962
income from investment product sales 309 — —
income from insurance subsidiary 183 270 223
Gain on sale of branches 4,892 — —
Other income 632 457 840
Total other operating income 9,508 984 4,960
Other operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 9,680 7,319 6,204
Net occupancy expenses 935 660 653
Furniture and equipment expenses 1,745 1,184 1,038
Pennsylvania shares tax 699 600 553
Amortization of intangibles 1,567 755 755
Expenses of insurance subsidiary 110 190 129
Other expenses 5,253 3,387 2,747
Total other operating expenses 20,049 14,095 12,079
Income before income tax provision 11,694 6,124 12,180
Income tax provision 3,344 1,526 3,425
Net income $ 8,350 $ 4,598 $ 8,755
Net income per share — Basic $ 120 $ 068 $ 1.28
Net income per share — Diluted $ 1.20 $ 0.68 $ 1.28

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. SunBancorp Inc. 18 2001 Annual Report




Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(In Thousands, Except for Share Data)

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Accumulated
Retained COther Total
Common Stock Earnings Comprehensive Treasury  Shareholders’
Shares Amount (Deficit) Income (Loss) Stock Equity
Balance, December 31, 1998 6,860 $72,913 $ (4,949 $ 2,016 $2,179 $ 67,801
Comprehensive loss: .
Net income 8,755 8,755
Unrealized losses on securities available
for sale, net of reclassification
adjustments and tax effects (12,683)
Total comprehensive loss (3,928)

Stock issued:
Stock dividends —
Employee benefit plans 398
Purchase of treasury stock (87,932 shares) (2,163)
Cash dividends declared, $.90 per share (6,135)
Tax benefit of exercised stock options 40

Balance, December 31, 1999 56,013
Comprehensive income:
Net income 4,598
Unrealized gains on securities available

for sale, net of reclassification

adjustments and tax effects 9,076
Total comprehensive income » 13,674

Stock issued:

Employee benefit plans 112
Purchase of treasury stock (140,391 shares) (1,995)
Cash dividends declared, $.78 per share (5,277)

Balance, December 31, 2000 62,527
Comprehensive income:
Net income 8,350
Unrealized gains on securities available

for sale, net of reclassification

adjustments and tax effects 3,660
Total comprehensive income 12,010

Stock issued:

Employee benefit plans 123 123
Purchase of Guaranty Bank, N.A.

(553,558 treasury shares) 1,810 — 5,388 8,198
Purchase of treasury stock (80,535 shares) —_ -_— (1,213) (1,213)
Cash dividends declared, $.60 per share — (4,134) _ (4,134)

Balance, December 31, 2001 $83,565 $ (6,961) $(1,162) $ 77,511

SunBancorp inc. 18 2001 Annual Report See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




{ConsolidatedS

(In Thousands)
Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 8350 $ 4,598 $ 8755
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash {used in)
provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan and lease losses 1,500 2,500 1,925
Provision for depreciation 977 812 715
Amortization of intangibles 1,567 755 755
Amortization and accretion of securities, net 418 90 253
Deferred income tax (305) (349) 2
Net securities (gains) losses (844) 1,955 (1,962)
Gain on sale of branches (4,892) — —
(ain on sale of bank premises and equipment (71) — —
Net change in other assets and liabilities (7,016) (2,217) 1,142
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (316) 8,144 11,585
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 43,252 71,024 37,104
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities 109,051 31,622 29,497
Cash acquired from branch acquisitions 92,852 — —
Cash paid from sale of branches (32,431) — —
Purchases of investment securities (135,464) (98,836) (111,945)
Net increase in loans (59,981) (30,472) (53,345)
Proceeds from sale of branches 4,892 — —
Proceeds from sale of bank premises and equipment 222 — —
Capital expenditures (596) (1,165) (2,118
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 21,797 (27,827) (100,807}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net (decrease) increase in deposits (8,557) 44,445 36,235
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 5,506 (26,384} 10,216
Proceeds from other borrowed funds — 100,000 75,000
Repayments of other borrowed funds — {92,000) (22,500)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures 16,500 — —
Cash dividends paid (4,134) {5,277) (6,135)
Proceeds from sale of stock for employee benefits program 123 112 398
Purchase of treasury stock (1,213) (1,995) (2,163)
Net cash provided by financing activities 8,225 18,901 91,051
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28,706 (782) 1,829
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15,277 16,059 14,230
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 44,983 $ 15,277 $ 16,059
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 34,598 $ 31,825 $ 25,769
Income taxes paid $ 2450 $ 2,239 $ 3,550

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:

o Loans with an estimated value of $837 in 2001 and $494 in 2000, were reclassified to foreclosed assets held for sale.
o The tax benefit of exercised stock options of $40 in 1999 was credited to common stock.

The net cash acquired in the amount of $60,421 from the acquisition of Guaranty Bank, N.A. and three Melion Bank branches, offset by the sale of

two SunBank branches resulted in the recording of the following:

Asset: Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
investments $25,967 Depaosits $137,868
Loans 51,101 Short-term borrowings 7,050
Bank premise and equipment 4,099 Subordinated debentures 3,944
Intangible assets 15,658 Accrued interest and other liabilities 1,458
Accrued interest and Comman stock 1,810
other assets 1,272 Treasury stock reduction 6,388
Total $98,097 Total $158,518

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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_Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sun Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Sun”) accounting and financial reporting policies conform with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America and with general financia! industry practices. Certain prior year amounts were reclassified to conform to current
year classifications. The following summary addresses the most significant policies:

CONSOLIDATION BasIs

Consclidated financial statements include the accounts of Sun Bancorp, Inc. (parent company) and its whally owned subsidiaries: SunBank (Bank),
SUBI Investment Company, Sun Trust [, and Beacon Life nsurance Company (Beacon}. Sun also helds thirty percent ownership in Sun Abstract
and Settlement Services (Sun Abstract). Beacon’s and Sun Abstract’s transactions are not material to the consolidated financial statements.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

OPERATIONS

Sun provides a full-range of community and commercial banking services through 24 SunBank offices in northeast and central Pennsylvania.
SunBank’s primary deposit products include checking, savings, money market, and certificate of deposit accounts. SunBank's primary foan
products include commercial loans, consumer loans, and single-family residential mortgages.

USE OF ESTIMATES

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheets, the disclosed amounts of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance
sheets, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results could differ significantly from those
estimates. In particular, management relies on estimates and assumptions when determining an adequate allowance for loan and lease 10sses.
Refer to the heading “Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses (ALLL)" in Note 1 for additional information.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Sun reports all securities, including debt instruments, restricted equities, and unrestricted equities as available for sale. Except for restricted
equities, Sun reports all securities at fair value, Unrealized gains or losses, net of tax, are excluded from earnings and reported as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders’ equity. Restricted equities consist primarily of Federal Home Loan Bank
of Pittsburgh (FHLB) stock, which is carried at cost and evaluated for impairment.

Management estimates fair values based on bid prices from securities dealers when available. When bid prices are not available, management
relies on standard economic value models. For certain instruments neither bid prices or economic value models are avallable, so management
estimates fair value based on observable market prices for instruments with similar cash flow and risk characteristics.

Premium amortization and discount accretion are recorded using the level yield method over each security's remaining contractual or expected
life (whichever is shorter), adjusted for actual prepayment experience. Realized gains and losses from securities sales are computed based on
each security’s specific carrying value.

LOANS AND LEASES

Sun recognizes loan and lease interest income using the accrual method applied to outstanding principal. Sun does not recognize interest income
when management believes collection is doubtful. When management designates a loan as nonaccrual, accrued interest receivable is generally
charged against current earnings. Designation as nonaccrual does not necessarily imply a potential principal charge-off. Sun generally does not
recognize interest income on specific (oans designated as impaired, unless management has determined further loss potential to be remote.
Generally, Sun applies interest payments received on impaired loans to reduce loan principal. Loan fees and origination costs are deferred and
recognized over each loan’s expected life. Management uses the interest methed to report those amounts as interest and fees on loans.

LOAN SERVICING

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in Sun’s consolidated balance sheets. Unpaid principal of mortgage loans serviced for others
totaled $20,769,000 at December 31, 2001, and $23,286,000 at December 31, 2000. Capitalized mortgage servicing rights (MSRs), includad
with other assets in the consolidated balance sheets, totaled approximately $36,000 at December 31, 2001, and $44,000 at December 31, 2000.

Sun records MSRs at fair value and amortizes the bafance over the period of estimated net servicing income or loss. Sun relies on a valuation
model to calculate the net present value of expected future cash flows that determines the MSRs fair value. Sun's valuation model incorporates
assumptions market participants might use to estimate future net servicing income, including loan types, interest rates, servicing costs,
prepayment speeds, and discount rates. Using this model, Sun periodically evaluates the MSR's value for impairment.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND ILEASE LOSSES (ALILIL)

Sun’s ALLL is funded through periodic provisions for loan and lease losses, and that provision is reported as an expense in current income. Loan
losses are charged against the ALLL in the period in which they have been determined to be uncollectible. Recoveries of previously charged off
loans are credited to the allowance as they are received. Management funds the ALLL at a level it believes will be adequate to absorb potential
losses in the existing loan portfolio. Management believes the ALLL is adequate at December 31, 2001.
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ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES (ALLL) (continued)

Sun's Joan portfolio consists primarily of residential mortgage loans and commercial loans concentrated in northeast and central Pennsylvania
{Lycoming, Snyder, Union, Northumberland and Luzerne counties). These regions’ economy depend on the manufacturing and service industries.
Unemptoyment is currently below the state average and real estate values are firm.

Management's analysis incorporates many factors, including current economic conditions, loss experience, loan portfolio composition, and
anticipated losses. For significant real estate properties, management obtains independent value appraisals. Management also retains
consultants to periodically review loan quality, which augments ALLL analysis.

However, unforeseen developments may require management to increase the ALLL. Such developments could include changing economic
conditions or negative developments with borrowers. In addition, bank regulators periodically assess Sun’s ALLL and may, consistent with
examination guidelines and current information, require an increased ALLL. As a result, any number of factors may materially change
management's analysis in the future.

FORECLOSED ASSETS

Sun classifies all foreclosed assets as held for sale and reports foreclosed assets at the lower of cost or fair value (less estimated selling costs).
Foreclosed assets, which are included with other assets in the consolidated balance shests, totaled $940,000 at December 31, 2001, and
$216,000 at December 31, 2000.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Sun reports premises and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed and recognized using the
straight-line method. Sun generally expenses repair and maintenance expenditures as incurred, and capitalizes such expenditures only when they
extend an asset’s useful life. When Sun retires or sells premises or equipment, remaining cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the account and any gain or loss is reported in current income.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Sun’s goodwill represents the excess cost of acquired assets relative to those assets’ fair value. Sun amortizes goodwill using the straight-line
method and 15-20 year lives. Sun periodically evaluates the goodwill carrying value for impairment based on fair value of non-discounted operating
cash flows. Sun’s goodwill results from the acquisition of Bucktail Bank and Trust Company (Bucktail) in 1897, and Guaranty Bank N.A. in 2001.

Sun’s core deposit intangible reprasents the premium paid for deposits from the acquisition of three former Mellon Bank, N.A. branches in 2001.
Sun amortizes the core deposit intangible using the straight-line method and a 10 year life.

Amortization of intangibles totaled $1,567,000 in 2001 and $755,000 in 2000 and 1999. Management believes no material impairment of
intangibles exists at December 31, 2001.

INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

Sun is a limited partner in five partnerships at December 31, 2001, and three partnerships at December 31, 2000, that provide low income elderly
housing in Sun’s market. Sun’s book value of these investments was $4,070,000 at December 31, 2001 and $3,125,000 at December 31, 2000.
Sun is amortizing the investment in each partnership to 50% of the original investment over the life of the tax credits generated by the investment,
The amortization of the limited partnership investments totaled $177,000 in 2001, $127,000 in 2000, and $29,000 in 1999,

INCOME TAXES

Sun provides for deferred income taxes as a result of temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax accounting methods.
Theses differences primarily involve timing differences for recognition of loan and lease losses, depreciation, deferred compensation, and loan

fee income.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the ordinary course of business, Sun enters into off-balance sheet financial instruments. Those instruments consist of commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit. When those instruments are funded or become payable, Sun reports the amounts in its financial statements.
Sun has not entered into any other off-balance sheet derivative instruments.

CasH FLows
Sun uses net reporting of cash receipts and payments for certain deposit and lending activities. Cash equivalents include cash and due from
banks and interest-bearing deposits in banks. Federal funds and other overnight borrowings are purchased and sold within a one-day period.

TRUST ASSETS AND INCOME

Assets held in a fiduciary or agency capacity are not Sun’s assets and are excluded from Sun’s consolidated financial statements. Trust income
is reported on the accrual basis for 2001 and 2000 and was reported on the cash basis for 1999. The difference between the accrual basis and
cash basis for trust income recognition was not material in 1999.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. PURCHASE OF GUARANTY BANK, N.A.

On May 31, 2001, Sun acquired Guaranty Bank, N.A. (“Guaranty”), a local bank headquartered in Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania. Sun’s results of
operations for 20071 include Guaranty's results of operations from May 31, 2001 through December 31, 2001. The acquisition, which has been
accounted for as a purchase, resulted in a cash payment of $2,544,000, issuing a subordinated debenture of $3,944,000, and 553,558 shares
of Sun common stock (formerly held as treasury stock) valued at $8,198,000 in exchange for all of the outstanding shares of Guaranty.

The total cost of this acquisition was $14,686,000. Goodwill in the amount of $6,291,000 was recorded and is being amortized using the
straight-line method over a period of 20 years.

3. NET INCOME PER SHARE
Net income per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of stock outstanding for each year presented. Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, “Earnings Per Share,” requires presentation of two amounts; basic and diluted net income per share.

The number of shares used in calculating net income per share and dividends per share for 1999 reflect the retroactive effect of a 5% stock
dividend in the second quarter of 1999, The following data shows the amounts used in computing net income per share and the weighted average
number of shares of dilutive stock options:

Common
income Shares Net Income
Numerator Denominator Per Share

2001

Net income per share — Basic $8,350,000 6,942,122 $1.20
Dilutive effect of potential common stock arising from stock options:

Exercise of options outstanding 236,334

Hypothetical share repurchase at $15.63 (232,952)

Net income per share — Diluted $8,350,000 6,945,504

2000

Net income per share — Basic $4,598,000 6,769,924
Dilutive effect of potential common stock arising from stock options:
Exercise of options outstanding 112,952
Hypathetical share repurchase at $15.13 (98,614)

Net income per share — Diluted $4,598,000 6,784,262

1989

Net income per share — Basic $8,755,000 6,813,956
Dilutive effect of potential common stock arising from stock options:
Exercise of options outstanding 238,137
Hypothetical share repurchase at $23.41 (191,979)

Net income per share — Diluted $8,755,000 6,860,114

4. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accounting principles generally require recognized revenues, expenses, gains, and losses be included in net income. Certain changes in assets
and liabilities, including unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as a separate equity component and as
components of comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (l0ss) components and related tax effects were:

(In Thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available for sale securities $6,388 $11,797
Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses realized in income (844) 1,955

Net unrealized gains {losses) 5,545 13,762
Income tax (expense) benefit (1,885) (4,676)

Net $3,660 $ 9,076
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5. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANK ACCOUNTS

Based on deposit levels, Sun must maintain cash and other reserves with the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia (FRB). Those reserves

- averaged $1,186,000 in 2001, $800,000 in 2000, and $619,000 in 1999, In 1999, Sun implemented account analysis systems, which enable
reclassification of transaction accounts to non-transaction accounts. This reclassification reduced the required reserve amount for 2001 and 2000.
These reserves were $1,175,000 at December 31, 2001 and $681,000 at December 31, 2000.

Deposits maintained at each financial institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000. Sun maintains
cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in excess of the insured amount.

6. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Sun’s entire investment portfolio is classified as available for sale. The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2001
and 2000 are shown below:

(In Thousands)

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2001 Cost Gains Losses Value
Debt securities:
Obligations of U.S. government agencies $258,234 $3,982 $ (557) $261,659
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 22,054 312 {161) 22,205
Other corporate 7,238 253 (40) 7,452
Total debt securities 287,527 4,547 (758) 291,316
Equity securities:
Marketable equity securities 3,836 13 (667) 3,182
Restricted equity securities 11,114 - —_ 11,114
Total equity securities 14,950 13 (667) 14,296
Total $302,477 $4,560 $(1,425) $305,612
December 31, 2000
Debt securities:
Obligations of U.S. government agencies $251,300 $1,301 $(2,353) $250,248
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 18,341 445 {33) 18,753
Other corporate 5,277 87 {227) 5137
Total debt securities 274,918 1,833 (2,613 274,138
Equity securities:
Marketable equity securities 5,376 9 (1,640) 3,745
Restricted equity securities 12,630 — — 12,630
Total equity securities 18,006 9 (1,640) 16,375
Total $292,924 $1,842 $(4,253) $290,513
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__Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements

6. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (consinued)

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of Sun's securities at December 31, 2001 and 200G, by contractual maturity, are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
prepayment penalties.

Securities by Contractual Maturity™*:
(In Thousands)

December 31,

Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Debt securities:

Due in one year or less $ 2,742 $ 2,757 $ 15 $ 15
Due after one year through five years 20,821 21,234 12,054 12,026
Due after five years through ten years 36,315 37,807 57,102 56,709
Due after ten years 14,922 15,317 22,831 23,291
Mortgage-backed securities 212,727 214,101 182,916 182,097
Total debt securities 287,527 291,316 274,918 274,138
Equity securities 14,950 14,296 18,006 16,375

Total $302,477 $305,612 $292,924 $290,513

*Actual principal cash flows may differ due to individual securities” call, prepayment, and other options.

Securities with a carrying value of $205,215,000 at December 31, 2001 and $275,996,000 at December 31, 2000 were pledged to secure
public deposits, trust deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, FHLB borrowings, and other balances required by law.

Sun’s securities do not include any concentrations exceeding 10% of shareholders’ equity from any individual issuer (excluding those guaranteed
by the U.S. government or its agencies).

Sales of Securities:
(In Thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

Realized Gains
Realized Losses
Net Realized Gains (Losses)
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7. LOANS
Loan activity is well diversified and focused within Sun’s defined market area. However, borrowers' ability to repay loans depends in part on
economic conditions in Sun’s market area.

Loan Portfolio Composition:
(In Thousands)
December 31, 2001 2000
Real estate — Mortgages $261,310 $203,371
Real estate — Construction 6,812 5,340
Agricultural 503 617
Commercial and industrial 151,181 117,096
Lease — Auto 8,489 —
Lease — Equipment 2,287 —
Individual 92,649 86,123
Other 1,619 54
Total 524,950 412,601
Less: Unearned income on loans (2,831) {391)
Unamortized net discount on purchased loans (137) (214
Deferred loan fees (258) (147)
ALLL (6,204) {5,074
Net $515,520 $406,775

Transactions in the ALLL were as follows:

ALLL:
(In Thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Balance, beginning of year $5,074 $ 3,857 $3,327
Provision for loan and lease losses 1,500 2,500 1,925
ALLL assumed upon acquisition of Guaranty 572 — —
Recoveries 341 270 211
Loans charged off (1,283) (1,553) (1,606)
Balance, end of year $ 6,204 $5,074 $ 3,857

Impaired Loans and Past Due Loans:
- (In Thousands)

At December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Impaired Ioans $5,502 $3,482 $2517
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more as to principal and interest $ 560 $1,429 $1.015
Amount of impaired loans with a related aliowance for possible loss $5,592 $3,482 $2,517
Amount of impaired loans with no related allowance —_ — —
Total allowance for impaired loans $2,339 $ 410 $ 459
For Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Average investment in impaired loans $4,977 $3,518 $3,288
Interest income recognized on impaired loans (all cash basis) $ 437 $ 271 $ 253
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lidated Financial Statements.

8. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Bank premises and equipment at December 31:

(In Thousands)
December 31, 2001 2000

Land $ 1,906 $ 1,542
Bank premises 12,308 9,529
Furniture and equipment 5,977 5,884

Total cost 21,191 16,955

Less: Accumulated depreciation (6,729) (6,080)
Bank premises and equipment, net $14,462 $10,895

Depreciation expense was $977,000 in 2001, $812,000 in 2000, and $715,000 in 1999,

9. DEPOSITS
The following table reflects certificates of deposit and other time deposits and their remaining maturities as of December 31, 2001:

(In Thousands)

Years Ending December 31:

2002 $195,094
2003 43,465
2004 19,291
2005 10,195
2008 12,764
Thereafter 186

Total $280,995

Accounts of $100,000 or More:

The totals above include certificates of deposit and other time deposits issued in amounts of $100,000 or more. These deposits and their
remaining maturities, at December 31, 2001 were:

(In Thousands)

December 31, 2001

Three months or less $10,628
Three through six months 8,979
Six through twelve months 13,004
Over twelve months 16,973

Total $49,584

Interest on deposits of $100,000 or more amounted to approximately $3,179,000 in 2001, $2,691,000 in 2000, and $2,001,000 in 1999.
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10. BORROWED FUNDS

At December 31, 2001, Sun’s maximum borrowing capacity at the FHLB was $273,979,000, with $51,706,000 in unused capacity. At
December 31, 2000, Sun’s maximum borrowing capacity at the FHLB was $253,067,000, with $30,786,000 in unused capacity. Sun also
maintains a line of credit with Allfirst Bank of $5,000,000 which has never been used.

Borrowed funds as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 included:

(In Thousands)

December 31, 2001 2000
Short-term Borrowings:

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 22,013 $ 9,557
Treasury Tax and Loan Note Option @ 125 25
Total Shori-term Borrowings 22,138 9,582
FHLB advances @ 222,000 222,000
Total Borrowed Funds $244,138 $231,582

(1) Securities sold under agreements to repurchase represent deposit customers’ cash management accounts. These repurchase agreements are

‘ collateralized by a blanket agreement with the FHLB in which the actual ownership of the securities is not transferred. The maximum month end
amount of securities sold under agreements to repurchase was $22,673,000 in 2001, $17,563,000 in 2000, and $15,332,000 in 1999,

The average daily amount of such borrowings was $17,101,000 in 2001, $11,438,000 in 2000, and $12,175,000 in 1999, and the weighted

average interest rates were 2.47% in 2001, 4.66% in 2000, and 3.36% in 1998.

(2) Borrowings on the Treasury Tax and Loan Note Option (TT&L) represent tax funds deposited and held until the U.S. Treasury calls the balance.
At December 31, 2001, the maximum amount available to borrow through the Note Options was $125,000. The maximum month end amount
of such borrowings was $125,000 in 2001, $25,000 in 2000, and $3,663,000 in 1999, The average daily amount of such borrowings was
$125,000 in 2001, $25,000 in 2000, and $199,000 in 1999, and the weighted average interest rates were 3.46% in 2001, 5.88% in 2000,
and 4.52% in 1999.

(3) FHLB advances represent variable and fixed rate borrowings collateralized by first-lien residential mortgages and investment securities issued
by U.S. government agencies. Stated maturities are shown below:

(In Thousands)

December 31, 2001 2000
Variable rates between 5.04% and 5.41%, at December 31, 2001, maturity 2008 $ 70,000 $ 70,000
Variable rates between 4.93% and 5.88%, at December 31, 2001, maturity 2009 50,000 50,000
Variable rates between 5.86% and 6.36%, at December 31, 2001, maturity 2010 100,000 100,000
Fixed rates between 7.80% and 7.88%, maturity 2002 2,000 2,000
Total $222,000 $222,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

11. ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires Sun to disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments.
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market and financial instrument information. These estimates do not
reflect any premium or discount that could result from a sale of any particular financial instrument or group of instruments. Established markets do
not exist for many of Sun’s financial instruments, so fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding current economic conditions, return
rates, and anticipated risk characteristics. These estimates are highly subjective, involve considerable uncertainty, and cannot be precisely
determined. Changes to those assumptions can significantly affect the estimated fair values.

Sun determines estimated fair value using historical data and reasonable estimation methodology for each financial instrument category. Estimated
fair value for Sun’s investment securities is detailed in Note 6. All other fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions are set forth below:

Cash and due from banlks:
The carrying amounts for cash and due from banks represent approximate fair value.

Loans:

Management segregates loans into categories with homogeneous types, financial structure, and risk characteristics. For performing loans,
expected cash flows until full repayment are discounted at a rate which management believes fairly reflects credit, interest rate, and other risks.
Cash flows and maturities are estimated based on Sun’s historical experience with each loan category (modified as warranted for current
gconomic conditions).

Management estimates fair value for significant nonperforming foans based on recent external appraisals. If appraisals are not available, estimated
cash flows are discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk associated with the estimated cash flows. Credit risk, cash flows, and discount
rate assumptions are determined using market information using methods management believes to be reasonable.

(In Thousands)

December 31,

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Total loans, net $515,520 $589,025 $406,775 $405,026

Deposits:

Fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings deposits, and Insured Money Market Accounts,
are estimated at carrying value. Fair value of deposits with frequently reset adjustable rates or managed rates are estimated at carrying value (such
deposits are generally priced at market). Fair value of time deposits is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows discounted at
observed market rates for time deposits with simifar characteristics and remaining maturities. Fair value estimates for deposits are not based on
market rates for borrowings or other higher cost alternatives.

(In Thousands)

December 31,

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Total deposits $573,877 $588,301 $444,566 $444,591
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11. ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Borrowed Funds:
Current available borrowing rates from similar sources are used to value existing borrowings.

(In Thousands)

December 31, 2001 2000

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
Total borrowings $264,582 $251,093 $231,582 $225,335
Off-balance Sheet Items:

There is no material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of off-balance sheet items. Those items totaled
$112,443,000 at December 31, 2001, and $123,360,000 at December 31, 2000. Those items primarily consist of unfunded loan commitments,
which are generally priced at market when funded.

12. COMMON STOCK PLANS

Sun has three common stock plans for employees and directors. The 1998 Stack Incentive Plan, administered by a disinterested Board of
Directors committee, allows 716,625 shares of common stock for key officers and other management employees in the form of qualified options,
nonqualified options, stock appreciation rights, or restrictive stock. The 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan allows 115,763 shares of
common stock to be issued to non-employee directors. Options under those plans expire ten years after the grant date. Also, 248,063 shares were
allocated for the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which permits all employees to purchase common stock at an option price per share not
less than 85% of the market value on the exercise date. Options granted to date have been awarded at 90% of the market value on the exercise
date. Each option under the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan expires no later than 5 years from the grant date. This plan terminates in 2008.

Sun applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25 and related interpretations to account for its common stock plans. Accordingly, Sun has not
recognized compensation expense for the plans. Had compensation costs been determined based on fair values at the grant dates (pursuant to
SFAS No. 123), Sun's net income and earnings per share for 2001, 2000, and 1999 would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts
indicated befow:

2001 2000 1999
Net income:
As reported $8,350,000 $4,598,000 $8,755,000
Pro forma $8,158,000 $4,434,000 $8,409,000
Earnings per share — Basic:
As reported $1.20 $0.68 $1.28
Pro forma $1.18 $0.65 $1.23

For the pro forma calculations above, each option grant’s fair value was estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing madel
and the following weighted-average assumptions for grants issued in 2001, 2000, and 1999;

2001 2000 1999
Dividend yield 4% 5% 3%
Volatility 24% 24% 24%
Risk-free interest rates:
Stock Incentive Plan 4.50% 6.13% 5.37%
Independent Directors Plan 4.88% 6.55% 5.18%
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 4.51% 6.38% 5.13%
Expected option lives 4 years 4 years 4 years
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 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. COMMON STOCK PLANS (continued)
The common stock plans are summarized below:

2001 2000 1999

Weighted-average Weighted-average Weighted-average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 510,887 $22.35 436,358 $23.25 361,122 $23.82
Granted 117,105 16.53 117,356 15.64 124,943 23.82
Exercised (9,085) 14.53 (7,504) 13.20 (27,503) 14.49
Forfeited (115,061) 15.11 (35,323) 13.17 (22,204) 26.84

Outstanding, end of year 503,846 $22.79 510,887 $22.35 436,358 $23.25

Options exercisable at year end 417,264 428,387 346,862 262,106

Fair value of options granted
during the year $2.48 $2.12 $4.19

The following table summarizes the fixed stock options outstanding under the Stock incentive Plan, Independent Directors Plan, and the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan at December 31, 2001:

Exercise Number Qutstanding Remafning Number Exercisable
Prices at December 31, 2001 Contractual Life at December 31, 2001

$15.40 8,411 1 year 8,411
$15.40 7,379 2 years 7,379
$15.40 12,276 3 years 12,276
$10.78 15,542 3 years 15,542
$15.40 13,836 4 years 13,836
$11.22 1,646 4 years 1,646
$13.71 23,080 4 years 23,080
$15.40 17,887 5 years 17,887
$16.24 6,330 5 years 6,330
$18.43 29,659 5 years 29,659
$19.19 8,230 6 years 8,230
$21.89 41,665 B years 41,665
$33.70 10,699 7 years 10,699
$34.29 56,692 7 years 56,692
$22.28 10,231 8 years 10,231
$25.71 56,952 8 years 56,952
$16.56 10,231 9 years 10,231
$16.00 75,500 9 years 75,500
$16.00 11,018 10 years ' 11,018
$16.83 86,582 10 years —

503,846 7.2 years 417,264

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Sun provides a defined contribution pension plan that covers substantially all employees. Sun’s contributions are based on employee contributions
and compensation. In addition to the defined contribution plan, Sun also provides supplemental payments to certain key employees upon
retirement. With the Guaranty acquisition in 20071, Sun will also provide supplemental payments to certain former directors. Life insurance
contracts are being used to fund this plan. Expenses related to to these plans were:

(In Thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Defined pension contributions $482 $350 $327
Supplemental payment expense $ 36 $ 40 $ 37
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14. INCOME TAXES
Temporary differences produced a deferred tax asset at December 31, 2001 and 2000, which is summarized below:

(In Thousands)

December 31, 2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:

Loan losses $1,892 $1,679
Discount on loans acquired from Bucktail 116 149
Loan fees and costs 86 47
Premium on deposits assumed from Bucktail — 9
Nonaccrual interest 68 28
Supplemental compensation plan 109 104
Unrealized losses on investment securities — 820
Other 71 178
Total 2,342 3,014
Deferred tax liabilities:

Bank premises and equipment 706 868
Unrealized gains on investment securities 1,066 —
Other 57 52
Total 1,829 920
Deferred tax asset, net $§ 513 $2,094

Sun’s income tax provision for 2001, 2000, and 1999 consists of the following:

(In Thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Current provision $3,649 $1,875 $3,383
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision (305) (349) 2
Tax expense from allocation of

stock option tax benefits directly to equity — — 40
income tax provision $3,344 $1,526 $3,425

Actual income tax expense reconciles to the tax amount, which would have been recognized at the federal statutory rate as follows:

(In Thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Federal income tax at statutory rate $4,093 35.0% $2,143 35.0% $4,263 35.0%
Tax exempt income (834) 7.1) (668) (10.9) (838) (6.9)
Amortization of goodwill 328 2.8 264 4.3 264 22
Tax credits from limited partnerships (443) (3.8) (225) (3.7) (228) (1.9)
Other items 200 1.7 12 2 (36) (3)
Income tax provision $3,344 28.6% $1,526 24.9% $3,425 28.1%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain executive officers, corporate directors, or companies in which they have 10 percent or more beneficial ownership were indebted to Sun or
held deposit accounts with the Bank during 2001. All transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and do not involve more than
normal collection risk. Other changes are transfers in and out of the related party category.

Related Party Indebtedness:
(In Thousands)

Beginning New Other Ending
Year Ended Becember 31, Balance Loans Repayments Changes Balance

14 Directors, 3 Executive Officers 2001  $6,468 $23,173 $(24,706) $5,911 $10,846
9 Directors, 3 Executive Officers 2000 5,673 9,729 (8,887) (47 6,468
9 Directors, 6 Executive Officers 1999 7,167 106 (1,600) — 5,673

Related Party Deposits:
(In Thousands)

December 31, 2000

Deposit Balances $2,803

16. OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

Sun is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet customers’ financing needs. These
financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit containing, in varying degrees, credit and interest rate risk
exceeding the amount recognized in the balance sheet.

Credit risk from nonperformance by counterparties to commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
amount of those instruments. Sun uses the same credit policies to guide commitments and conditicnal obligations as it does for direct, funded loans.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as no contract conditions are violated. Commitments generally include
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and certain fee payments. Since many commitments are expected to expire without being drawn
upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on a
case-by-case basis. The collateral amount obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral
types vary but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments that guarantee a customer's performance to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily
issued to support borrowing arrangements and related transactions. Terms vary from one month to 24 months and may have renewal features.
Credit risk differs little from direct loans to customers. When warranted, Sun holds collateral against those commitments.

(In Thousands)
December 31, 2001 2000

Commitments to extend credit (binding) $110,183 $119,410
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees $ 2,250 $ 3950
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17. REGULATORY MATTERS

Sun and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum
capital requirements could prompt regulatory action that, if undertaken, might materially affect Sun’s financial statements. Under regulatory capital
adequacy guidelines, Sun and the Bank must meet specific capital requirements involving quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items (calculated using regulatory accounting practices). All related factors are subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators.

Capital adequacy regulations require Sun and the Bank to maintain minimum total and Tier | capital amounts and ratios. To be considered “well
capitalized”, Sun must maintain higher capital amounts and ratios. Management believes Sun and the Bank meet all applicable capital adequacy
requirements as of December 31, 2001 and 2000. The table below details Sun’s capital amounts and ratios, and lists regulatory minimum and
well capitalized requirements.

(In Thousands)

To Be Well Capitalized

For Capital Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2001:
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $78,730 14.9% $42,233 8.0% $52,791 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $68,582 13.0% $21,116 4.0% $31,675 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $68,582 71% $38,507 4.0% $48,134 5.0%
As of December 31, 2000:
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $59,303 15.0% $31,651 8.0% $39,564 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $54,356 13.7% $15,825 4.0% $23,738 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $54,356 7.5% $29,041 4.0% $36,302 5.0%
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18. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION — PARENT COMPANY ONLY

COMDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Thousands)
December 31,

Assets:

Cash

Securities available for sale
Subsidiary investments:

SunBank

SUBI Investment Company

Beacon Life Insurance Company

Sun Trust !

Sun Abstract & Settlement Services
Receivable from Sun Trust |
Subordinated debenture issuance costs
Other assets

14
19
445
56

15

94

Total assets

$99,230

$62,649

Liabilities:

Subordinated debentures

Suberdinated debenture interest payable
Accounts payable

$20,955
755
9

$ —

122

Total Liabilities

21,719

122

Sharenolders’ Equity:

Common stock

Retained earnings (deficit)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (oss)
Treasury stock

83,565
(6,961)
2,069
(1,162)

81,632
11,177
{1,581)
(6,337)

Total shareholders’ equity

77,511

62,527

Total liabitities and shareholders’ equity

$99,230

$62,649

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In Thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2001

2000

Income:

Dividends from Subsidiaries
Net security gains

Interest and other income

$ 1,059

75

$ 6,506

19

Total income

1,134

6,525

Expenses:

Subordinated debenture interest

Stationery and printing

Professional fees

Other expenses

Loss from investment in limited partnerships

1,623
61
197
260

17
82
221

Total expenses

2,141

320

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries
Income tax benefit

(1,007)
(698)

6,205
(107)

Income (loss) before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed earnings {losses) of subsidiaries

(309)
8,659

6,312
{1,714)

Net income

$ 8,350

$ 4,598

SunBancorp Inc. 32 2001 Annual Report




“““ ﬁ 18. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION — PARENT COMPANY ONLY (consinued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Cash fiows from operating activities:
Net income $ 8,350 $ 4,598 $ 8,755

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash {used in} provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed (earnings) losses of subsidiaries (8,659) 1,714 (2,818)
Loss from investment in limited partnerships -_ — 29
Realized net security gains —_ — (198)
(increase) decrease in other assets (487) 889 (176)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities 642 117 2
Met cash (used in) provided by operating activities (154) 7,418 5,590

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of investment securities 7) (240) (110)
Purchase of investment in SUBI Investment Company (8,460) — _ —
Purchase of investment in Sun Trust | (511) — —
Purchase of investment in Sun Abstract —_— (15) —
Praceeds from return of capital of investment in Sun Abstract 7 — —
Proceeds from transfer of investment in

limited partnerships to SunBank — — 1,488
Proceeds from sales of investment securities : —_ — 833
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (8,971) (255) 2,211

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures 17,011 — —

Cash dividends (4,134) (5,277) (6,135)

Return of capital, Sun Abstract 4 — —

Purchase of Guaranty Bank, N.A. (2,544) — —

Purchase of treasury stock (1,213) (1,995) (2,163)

Proceeds from sale of stock for employee benefit program 123 112 398

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 9,247 (7,160) {7,900)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 122 3 99)

: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 28 25 124
“““ : Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 150 § 28 $ 25
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19. CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL IDATA (UNAUDITED)
(Dollars in Thousands, Except for Per Share Data)

2001 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr, 3rd Qtr, 4th Qtr. Total

Interest income $13,692 $14,723 $16,198 $15,081 $59,694
Interest expense (8,518) (8,142) (9,593) (8,706) (35,959)

Net interest income 5,174 5,581 6,605 6,375 23,735
Provision for loan and lease losses (300) (300) (325) (575) (1,500)
Net security (losses) gains 798 38 62 (54) 844
Other operating income 810 893 1,235 834 3,772
Gain on sale of branches — — — 4,892 4,892
Other operating expenses (4,096) (4,833) (5,413) (5,707) (20,049)

Income before income taxes 2,386 1,379 2,164 5,765 11,694
Income tax provision 613) (285) (613) (1,833) (3,344)

Net income $ 1,773 $ 1,004 $ 1,551 $ 3,832 $ 8,350

Net income per share - Basic $ 027 $ 0.1 $ 022 $ 055 $ 1.20

Net income per share - Diluted $ 027 $ 0.16 $ 022 $ 055 $ 1.20

2000 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr, 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr. Total

Interest income $12,934 $13,255 $13,691 $13,680 $53,560
Interest expense (7,410 (7,698) (8,274) (8,443) (31,825)

Net interest income 5,524 5,557 5417 5,237 21,735
Provision for loan and lease losses (600) {700) (600) (600) (2,500)
Net security (losses) gains 15 (2,265) 247 43 (1,955)
Other operating income 706 769 710 754 2,939
Other operating expenses (3.121) (3,430) (3,364) (4,180) (14,095)

Income (l0ss) before income taxes 2,524 (69) 2,410 1,259 6,124
Income tax (provision) benefit (716) 155 (639) (326) (1,526)

Net income $ 1,808 $ 86 $ 1,771 $ 933 $ 4,598

Net income per share — Basic $ 27 $ .01 $ .26 $ 14 $ .68

Net income per share — Diluted $ 27 $ .01 $ .26 $ 14 $ .68
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20. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.
This statement supercedes and replaces the guidance in Statement No. 125. It revises the standards for accounting for securitization and other
transfers of financial assets and collateral and requires certain disclosures, although it carries over mast of Statement No. 125's provisions
without reconsideration. The Statement is effective for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities occurring after
March 31, 2001, and for recognition and reclassification of collateral and for disclosures relating to securitization transactions and collateral for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2000. This Statement is to be applied prospectively with certain exceptions. Other than those exceptions,
earlier or retroactive application of its accounting provisions is not permitted. The adaption of this statement had no impact on Sun’s financial
condition, equity, results of operations or disclosure.

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations.” The Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for
business combinations and supersedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and FASB Statement No. 38, “Accounting for Preacquisition
Contingencies of Purchased Enterprises.” All business combinations in the scope of the Statement are to be accounted for using the purchase
method. The provisions of the Statement apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. The Statement also applies to all business
combinations accounted for using the purchased method which the date of acquisition is July 1, 2001 or later. There is no expected impact on
earnings, financial conditions or equity upon adoption of Statement No. 141,

in June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The Statement addresses financial accounting and
reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets and supersedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets.” It addresses how intangible assets
that are acquired individually or with a group of other assets (but not those acquired in a business combination) shou!d be accounted for in financial
statements upon their acquisition. The Statement also addresses how goodwill and other intangible assets should be accounted for after they have
been initially recognized in the financial statements. The provisions of the Statement are required to be applied starting with fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, except that goodwill and intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001 will be subject immediately to the nonamortization and
amortization provisions of the Statement. Early application is permitted for entities with fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2001, provided that the
first interim financial statements have not previously been issued. The Statement is required to be applied at the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year and
to be applied to all goodwill and other intangible assets recognized in its financial statement at that date. This Statement does not supersede FASB
Statement No. 72, “Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions.” FASB has appointed a committee to address concerns and
issues raised as a result of excluding SFAS 72 from the provisions of SFAS 142. Based on the current project plan, a statement of narrow scope is
expected in the fourth quarter of 2002, There was no impact on earnings, financial condition or equity as of, or for, the year ending December 31, 2001,
Sun has not yet determined the future impact, if any, from this Statement on Sun’s financial condition, equity, results of operations, or disclosure.

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. It applies to
legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition construction, development and (or) the normal
operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. As used in this Statement, a legal cobligation is an obligation that a party is
required to settle as a result of an existing or enacted law, statute, ordinance or written or oral contract or by legal construction of a contract under
the doctrine of promissory estopped. This Statement requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the
period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of
the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 19, “Financial Accounting and Reporting by Cil and Gas
Producing Companies,” and it applies to all entities, It is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002.
Earlier application is encouraged. Sun does not expect the adoption of the Statement to have an impact on its earnings, financial condition or equity.

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This Statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, *Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of." However, the Statement retains the fundamental provisions of
Statement No. 121 for (a) recognition and measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and (b) measurement of long-
lived assets to be disposed of by sale. This Statement supersedes the accounting and reporting provision of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a business. However, this Statement retains the requirement of Opinion No. 30 to report
discontinued operations separately from continuing operations and extends that reporting to a component of an entity that either has been disposed
of (by sale, by abandenment or in distribution to owners) or is classified as held for sale. This Statement also amends ARB No. 51, "Consolidated
Financial Statements,” to eliminate the exception to consolidation for a tempararily-controlled subsidiary. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with
earlier application encouraged. The provision of this Statement generally are to be applied prospectively. Sun does not expect the adoption of the
Statement to have an impact on its earnings, financial condition or equity.

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On January 31, 2002, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.15 per common share. The dividend will be payable
March 8, 2002 to shareholders of record on February 22, 2002,
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUN BANCORDE INC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sun Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (Sun) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of Sun's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sun Bancorp,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Williamsport, Pennsylvania

February 19, 2002
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Balance Sheet Data (7» Thousands) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Assets $920,855 $743,588 $710,921 $623,577 $510,728
Deposits 573,878 444,566 400,121 363,886 327,018
Loans 515,520 408,775 377,485 326,928 310,300
Securities available for sale 305,612 290,513 282,616 254,780 165,284
Shareholders' equity 77,511 62,527 56,013 67,801 65,613
Average equity 68,207 57,768 63,537 67,063 51,470
Average assets 866,053 724,435 661,099 575,797 440,181

Earnings Data (% Thousands)

Interest income $ 59,694 $ 53,360 $ 47,454 $ 42,677 $ 33,653
Interest expense 35,959 31,825 26,230 22,467 16,619
Net interest income 23,735 21,735 21,224 20,210 17,034
Provision for loan and lease losses 1,500 2,500 1,925 1,200 1,175
Net interest income after provision

for loan and lease losses 22,235 19,235 19,299 19,010 15,859
Net security gains (losses) 844 (1,955) 1,962 1,403 1,779
Other gperating income 3,772 2,939 2,998 2,687 2,046
Gain on sale of branches 4,892 — -— — —
Other operating expenses 20,049 14,095 12,079 11,295 9,373
Income before income tax provision 11,694 6,124 12,180 11,805 10,311
Income tax provision 3,344 1,526 3,425 3,079 2,510
Net income 8,350 4,598 8,755 8,726 7,801
Dividends paid 4,134 5,277 6,135 5,369 4,217
Ratios
Return on average assets .93% 63% 1.32% 1.51% 1.77%
Return on average equity 12.24% 7.96% 13.78% 13.01% 15.16%
Equity to assets (year end) 8.42% 8.41% 7.88% 10.87% 12.85%
Loans to deposits {year end) 89.83% 91.50% 94.34% 89.84% 94.89%
Loans to assets (year end) 55.98% 54.70% 53.10% 52.43% 60.76%
Dividend payout

(percentage of net income) 49.51% 114.77% 70.07% 61.53% 54.06%

Per Share Data

Net income per share — Basic $ 1.20 $ .68 $ 128 $ 127 $ 123
Net income per share — Diluted $ 120 $ 68 $ 128 $ 126 $ 1.22
Cash dividends per share $ .60 $ .78 $ 90 $ 78 $ 65
Book value per share $ 10.85 $ 939 $ 825 $ 989 $ 960
Average shares outstanding — Basic 6,942,122 6,769,924 6,813,956 6,856,955 6,348,379
Average shares outstanding — Diluted 6,945,504 6,784,262 6,860,114 6,923,366 6,415,596
Approximate number of shareholders 2,207 2,159 2,105 1,977 1,757
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS (FLSs)

This report contains FLSs that reflect Sun’s current views regarding future events and financial performance for Sun and its subsidiaries. FLSs.may
generally, but not always, be identified by words such as “estimate,” “believe,” “forecast” and other indications of future events and trends. FLSs
are subject to considerable uncertainties and risks, including factors beyond Sun’s control that could cause actual results to differ materially from
historical or anticipated results. Such factors include, but are not limited to (1) customer and deposit attrition or revenue loss following announced
mergers may be greater than expected; (2) financial industry competition may increase significantly; (3) changing economic, interest rate, and
regulatory environments; (4) announced mergers do not consummate as anticipated; (5) other factors that may not be identifiable at this time.
Further, Sun’s historical performance does not guarantee and may not indicate future results.

The list of important factors is not complete or exclusive. Additional information regarding factors that may cause actual results to differ materially
from those considered by FLSs is included in Sun’s current and subsequent filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Sun does
not update any FLS that may be made from time to time by or on behalf of Sun.

OPERATIONS

Sun provides community-based commercial banking and asset management services through 24 SunBank offices in Lycoming, Snyder, Union,
Northumberland, Clinton, and Luzerne counties in northeast and central Pennsylvania. The offices are located in diversified local economies
with solid manufacturing and service bases. Those local economies have not been subjected to observable significant adverse effects from
extraordinary events during 2001. During the fourth quarter of 2001, Sun sold its two branches in Elk and Cameron counties in part due to
management’s assessment that local economic conditions were not conducive to Sun's objectives.

Sun’s business is focused in community banking, commercial banking, asset management, and treasury. Through community banking, Sun
delivers financial products and services to retail customers via its branch network, telephone systems, and internet systems. Community
banking preducts and services include a wide range of deposit products, residential mortgage loans, vehicle and personal loans, and other
services. Sun’s commercial banking business line provides credit, deposit, cash management, and other services to businesses, municipalities,
and nonprofit organizations. The wealth management group provides asset management and trust services to retail and corporate customers.
The treasury area manages Sun's investment securities portfolio and overall asset/liability strategy. In addition, Sun has subsidiaries and
ownership interests in partnerships that engage in various business activities, including credit life and disability insurance, title insurance and
settlement services, equipment leasing, consumer auto leasing, and affordable housing for senior citizens.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Summary:

Sun reported net income of $8,350,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, or $1,20 per share. Net income was $4,598,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000, or $0.68 per share. That 82% increase was augmented by a $3,180,000 gain, net of tax, from the sale of two branch

offices, increased fee income from deposit accounts and new services. However, those items were partially offset by nonrecurring charges related
to acquisitions and consolidation of four trade names under the SunBank corporate identity.

Net of items management believes were nonrecurring, net income would have been $5,260,000 for the year ended Dacember 31, 2001, or
$0.76 per share.

During 2001, management implemented many new strategies and programs expected to begin improving Sun's performance. Following the major
management and strategic restructure that occurred in 2000, management's 2001 efforts were concentrated on strengthening credit quality,
establishing Sun’s brand of community-focused commercial banking, expanding core markets, building an effective sales cutture, and introducing
new products and services. Management's efforts have been largely successful and will continue in 2002,

During 2002, management plans to improve operational capabilities, expand product lines, and improve service as parts of “Project Deliver
Excellence.” Project Deliver Excellence will review all operational areas to identify potential improvements in efficiency, service, and cost. The
project is led by an internal task force of employees with considerable, varied experience at a variety of financial institutions. Management does
not expect to incur material charges related to the project.

Sun’s 2001 financial results illustrate both the potential for growth and improved performance, but also show lingering traces of past leverage
strategies. Management believes Sun’s strategies, culture, and services are aligned to enable continued improvement. Sun’s 2001 acquisitions of
three Mellon bank branches and Guaranty Bank, N.A. have proven successful and have provided attractive new markets with significant growth
potential. Managemant intends to vigorously pursue improved performance in 2002 and beyond via its focus on credit quality, core depasit growth,
effective risk management, and market expansion.
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INTEREST EARNING ASSETS

Loans

Loans represent Sun’s largest interest earning asset component. Net total loans increased $108,745,000 to $515,520,000 at December 31, 2001,
from $406,775,000 at December 31, 2000, which represents 26.73% growth. The purchase of Guaranty Bank, N.A. increased loans by
$71,964,000 while the sale of the Emporium and Johnsonburg branches decreased loans by $21,738,000. The largest increases occurred in
commercial loans and in residential mortgages, which reflected Sun’s strategic plan to grow those portfolios. Management believes the loan
portfolio is adequately diversified and no credit concentration exceeds 10% of total loans.

Sun extends credit principally to customers in its core market areas, including Lycoming, Snyder, Union, Northumberiand, Clinton, and Luzerne
counties in Pennsylvania. Sun’s lending activity focuses on three segments: commercial, residential mortgage, and consumer loans. Commercial
credit products include demand notes, variahle rate notes, credit lines, equipment leasing, and real estate financing. Residential mortgage lending
includes a variety of programs and terms consistent with the national and local markets. Consumer loans are primarily direct and indirect vehicle
financing. By preference, Sun lends predominately on a secured basis.

The following table identifies loan portfolioc composition, net of unearned income, unamortized discounts an purchased loans, deferred loan fees,
and ALLL, for the five years ended December 31:

(In Thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Real estate — Mortgage $261,310 $203,371 $178,876 $192,592 $202,882
Real estate — Construction 6,812 5,340 3,318 3,363 3,632
Agricultural 503 617 1,059 971 1,157
Commercial and industrial 151,181 117,096 114,193 52,823 34,560
Individual 92,649 86,123 85,255 83,343 75,396
Lease — Auto 8,489 — — — —
Lease — Equipment 2,287 — — — —
Other 1,619 54 104 383 90
Unearned income on loans (2,831) (391) (740) (1,666) (1,961)
Deferred loan fees (258) (147 (215) (274) (533)
Unamortized net discount
on purchased loans (137) (214) (508) (1,270 (1,793
ALLL {6,204) (6,074) (3,857) (3,327) (3,130
Total loans, net $515,520 $406,775 $377,485 $326,928 $310,300

The following tables report gross loan balances by maturities and interest rate repricing for agricultural, commercial and industrial, and
real estate — construction loans at December 31, 2001.

(In Thousands)

Within After One But After
One Year Within Five Years Five Years Total
Agricultural, commercial and industrial $57,643 $47,918 $46,123 $151,684
Real estate — Construction 6,912 — —_ 6,912
Total $64,555 $47,918 $46,123 $158,596

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Fixed Variable

Rate Rate Total
Due within one year $ 5,163 $58,392 $ 64,555
Due after one year 71,438 22,603 94,041
Total $76,601 $81,995 $158,596
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CREDIT QUALITY

Despite adverse national economic developments, Sun’s credit quality remained healthy during 2001, As 2001 progressed, some banks began
reporting credit difficulties and bank regulatory agencies cautioned that overall bank credit quality might be pressured. Contrary to industry trends,
Sun’s credit quality remained solid and loan demand remained strong.

Net loans grew $108,745,000, or 26.7%, to $515,520,000 from $406,775,000 at December 31, 2000. While net loans increased substantially,
past due and nonperforming loans remained stable. At December 31, 2001, past due and nonperforming loans totalled $7,289,000 (1.41% of
net loans) compared to $5,819,000 (1.43% of net loans) as of December 31, 2000.

Beginning in 1999, management began instituting a new, strengthened credit culture and control environment. Sun extends primarily secured
credit, and management closely evaluates collateral both prior to extending credit and periodically thereafter. A consistent credit-scoring system,
tailored for each loan segment, enables management to carefully evaluate each borrower’s credit risk. Risk-based pricing enables management to
price loans based on each credit's unigue risk characteristics. Management’s efforts have been successful, but improvement is continually sought.

Sun relies on a matrix approval system to evaluate and approve new credits. in addition, Sun'’s credit quality committee meets regularly to focus
exclusively on potential credit issues. This senior management committee also includes representatives from the Board of Directors. Larger loans
are presented directly to the Board of Directors for consideration. Management provides the credit quality committee and the Board of Directors
with regular reports that illustrate the bank’s current and anticipated credit quality.

Sun's formal loan review process provides management with independent credit assessments. In addition, Sun periodically retains an
independent consultant to review all credits $250,000 and greater. Equally important, management uses those reviews to evajuate internal loan
review effectiveness. Sun believes its loan review program provides adeguate coverage and independent analysis for management’s credit
quality assessments,

Past due and nonperforming loans include past due, nonaccrual, and restructured loans. Sun places loans on nonaccrual status when
management concludes collection of interest income appears doubtful, or once the loan reaches 90 days past due (unless well-secured and in the
process of collection). Interest on loans classified nonaccrual is recognized as it is received. Restructured loans have terms renegotiated to reduce
or defer interest or principal.

Nonaccrual, past due, and restructured loans for the five years ended December 31, 2001:
(In Thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Loans past due 30 to 89 days $3,520 $3,185 $4,954 $ 8,545 $ 8,213
Loans past due 90 days or more 560 1,429 1,015 2,867 2,988
Nonaccrual loans 2,851 837 1,965 635 1,110
Restructured loans 358 368 320 243 326

Total past due and nonperforming loans $7,289 $5,819 $8,254 $12,290 $12,637

Total past due and nonperforming loans above include “impaired” loans of approximately $5,592,000 at December 31, 2001, and $3,482,000 at
December 31, 2000. In accordance with SFAS No. 114, a loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it appears
probable all amounts due will not be collected according to the loan’s contractual terms. This category does not apply to large groups of smaller
balance loans collectively evaluated for impairment, such as residential mortgage and consumer loans.
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ALLOWANCE FOR [LOAN AND LLEASE LOssES (ALLL)

Sun’s ALLL is funded through periodic provisions for loan and lease losses, and that provision is reported as an expense in current income. Loan
losses are charged against the ALLL in the period in which they have been determined uncoliectible. Recoveries of previously charged off loans are
credited to the ALLL when received. Management funds the ALLL at a level believed adequate to absorb potential credit losses in the existing loan
portfolio. Management believes the ALLL is adequate as of December 31, 2001.

Management’s analysis incorporates many factors, including current and anticipated economic conditions, loss experience, loan portfolio
composition, anticipated losses, and unfunded commitments. For significant real estate properties, management obtains independent value
appraisals. Sun's internal loan review function provides independent credit assessments and management also retains consultants to conduct
periodic foan quality reviews, which management incorporates into its ALLL analysis.

Sun segregates the ALLL into specific allocations and other components. Management determines specific allocations based on criteria and
analysis developed to evaluate credit risk within each loan category. Each loan category’s unigue risk characteristics guides management’s analysis
and determination of an adequate specific reserve for that category. For real estate loans, management considers factors that include historical
and projected loss rates, past dug levels, collateral values, and anticipated economic conditions. For commercial and industrial loans, management
evaluates several factors including: historical loss experience, current loan grades, expected future cash flows, individual loan reviews, internal and
external analysis, and anticipated economic conditions. For individual (consumer) loans, management evaluates factors such as histerical and
projected loss rates, past due levels, collateral values, and anticipated economic conditions.

Sun’s other ALLL components are based on loss rates by loan grade, economic trends, and other risk factors. Management determines estimated
loss rates by loan grade based on current loan grade, remaining term, loan type, periodic quantification of actual losses over a period of time, and
other factors. Management believes its methodology reasonably measures the credit risk not captured in specific allocations and provides for an
adequate aggregate ALLL.

Management closely monitored the ALLL during 2001 concurrently with other efforts that produced improved credit quality (refer to prior Credit
Quality subsection). Management had increased the provision for loan and lease losses (PLLL) to $2,500,000 during 2000. That 30% increase,
coupled with reduced charge-offs and increased recoveries, resulted in the ALLL growing from 1.01% of total loans at December 31, 1999, to
1.23% of total loans at December 31, 2000. That growth not only complimented Sun’s improving credit quality, it provided additional protection
against potential credit risk. Management believes increasing the ALLL was prudent for three reasons: to capture potential additional credit risk
from loan growth during 2000, to protect against negative economic conditions that began to develop during 2000, and to reflect enhanced credit
risk management and measurement systems developed during 2000.

During 2001, management reduced the PLLL to $1,500,000, and that reduction reflected an existing adequate ALLL, credit quality improvement,
stable trends, and improved analysis. The 2001 PLLL resulted in an ALLL of $6,204,000 (1.20% of total loans) as of December 31, 2001,
compared to $5,074,000 (1.23% of total loans) as of December 31, 2000.

Management has continued to enhance its methodology for analyzing the ALLL and for allocating reserves. However, the ALLL still only represents
management’s estimate of an amount adequate to absorb probable loan losses due to credit quality. Management cannot precisely quantify that
amount due to many uncertainties, including future global, national, and local economic conditions and other factors. As a result, unforeseen
developments may require management to increase the ALLL. Such developments could include changing economic conditions or negative
developments with borrowers. In addition, bank regulators periodically assess Sun’s ALLL and may, consistent with examination guidelines and
current information, require an increased ALLL. As a result, any number of factors may materially change management’s analysis in the future.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES (AILLL) (consinued)
ALLL Allocation and ALLL Changes for the five years ended December 31, 2001:

(In Thousands)
2001

2000

1999 1998

1997

% of
Total

Allowance Loans

Allowance

% of
Total
Loans

Allowance

% of
Total
Loans

% of
Total

Loans Allowance

Allowance

% of
Totat
Loans

Real estate $2,357
Commercial
and industrial

Individual

1,922
1,925

30.98
31.03

37.99%

$1,870

1,990
1,214

36.85%

39.22
23.93

$ 844

908
2,105

47.59% $1,408  58.76%
479

1,440

16.25
24.99

30.13
22.28

$1,651

335
1,144

65.00%

1127
2373

Total ALLL $6,204

100.00%

$5,074

100.00%

$3,857

100.00% $3,327  100.00%

$3,130

100.00%

(In Thousands)

2001

Balance, beginning of year

$5,074

Loans and leases charged off:
Real estate

Commercial and industrial
Individual

(303)
(321)
(659)

Total loans and leases charged off

(1,283)

Recoveries:

Real estate

Commercial and industrial
Individual

Total recoveries of loans and
leases charged off

Net foans charged off
Provision for loan and lease losses

ALLL assumed upon
acquisition of Guaranty

ALLL assumed upon
acquisition of Bucktail

1,292

Balance, end of year

$ 6,204

$5074

$ 3,327

$3,130

Ratios:
Net charge-offs to average loans

19%

32%

40%

.32%

68%

ALLL to total loans at December 31

1.20%

1.23%

1.01%

1.00%

.99%

ALLL to total nonperforming loans

164.61%

192.63%

116.88%

88.84%

70.75%
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Sun’s securities portfolio traditionally was composed almost entirely of long-term mortgage pass-through securities. However, those instruments
carry significant market risk and extension risk due to prepayment volatility. Management now maintains the investment portfolio to serve as a
stable source of supplemental liquidity and earnings.

Thus, management's portfolio strategy focuses on maximizing risk-adjusted return through effective analysis of cash flows and embedded options.
Generally, Sun does not take material credit risk in its securities portfolio. Sun’s investment activities emphasize instruments with well-structured
cash flows, competitive returns, and moderate market risk. Through careful menitoring and transaction timing, management has reduced the
securities portfolio’s embedded market risk without a substantial decline in aggregate yield. Management intends to pursue further risk reduction
strategies during 2002 whenever warranted.

Investment securities contractual maturities as of December 31, 2001:

(In Thousands)

Within After One But After Five But After
One Year Within Five Years Within Ten Years Ten Years Total
Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield
Obligations of
U.S. government
. agencies $1,457 4.52% $18,797  6.03% $57,903 6.36% $180,077 - 535% $258,234 562%
A Obligations of states
and political .
subdivisions ™ 1,907 6.03 3,284 891 2,569 11.69 14,294 12.35 22,054 11.23
Corporate 301 1.82 2,081  6.00 2192 882 2,665 740 7,239 717
Total $3,665 5.08% $24,162  6.42% $62,664 6.67 $197,036  5.89% 287,527  6.09
Equity securities @ 14,950
Total investment securities $302,477  579%

(1) Tax-equivalent income calculated using a 34% federal income tax rate.
(2) Equity securities have no stated maturity or dividend rate.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FUNDING

Deposits:

Sun’s total deposits increased $129,311,000, or 29.09%, to $573,877,000 at December 31, 2001, compared to $444,566,000 at

December 31, 2000. The growth in deposits is net of $123,778,000 acquired from the purchase of Guaranty Bank, N.A. and $54,507,000 sold
during the sale of the Emporium and Johnsonburg branches. in 2000, total deposits increased $44,445,000, or 11.11%, from $400,121,000 at
December 31, 1999. During 2000, Sun recognized that low core deposit levels created reliance on higher cost certificates of deposit and borrowed
funds. This refiance increased interest expense, decreased net interest income, and compressed the net interest margin. Notably, Sun considers
core funding to be only deposit accounts without stated maturities. Such transaction and savings products generally represent more lasting, lower
cost relationships. in the fourth quarter of 2000, Sun began a program to aggressively pursue increased core deposits. That customer relationship
management program is a core strategy for 2002 and beyond.

(In Thousands)
% of % Change
December 31, 2001 Total from Prior Year

Demand deposits $ 58,063 10.12% 46.02%
NOW accounts 146,339 25.50 32.66
Insured Money Market Accounts 18,058 3.15 14.22
Savings deposits 70,422 12.27 74.54
Time Certificates of Deposit of $100,000 or more 48,484 8.62 11.24
Other time deposits 231,511 40.34 19.43

Total deposits $573,877 100.00% 29.09%

% of % Change
December 31, 2000 Total from Prior Year

Demand deposits $ 39,764 8.94% 5.24%
NOW accounts 110,309 24.81 12.50
Insured Money Market Accounts 15,810 3.56 (22.13)
Savings deposits 40,347 9.08 (6.98)
Time Certificates of Deposit of $100,000 or more 44,485 10.01 26.17
Other time deposits 193,851 43.60 17.24

Total deposits $444 566 100.00% 11.11%

Other Funding:

Sun continued using borrowed funds to supplement deposits during 2001, At December 31, 2001, the $222,000,000 in FHLB term advances included
$220,000,000 in variable rate advances. The variable rate advances balance includes individual advances that mature between 2008 and 2010.

The remaining borrowed funds were $2,000,000 in fixed rate advances maturing in 2002. FHLB advances are collateralized by pledged investment
securities (U.S. government agency debt) and first lien residential mortgage loans. Other funding sources include deposit customers’ cash
management accounts (classified as securities sold under agreements to repurchase) and the Treasury Tax and Loan Note Option. Sun continually
monitors its borrowed funds positions and market conditions in order to maintain an effective funding structure. When appropriate, Sun may take
future action to modify its borrowed funds structure.

NET INTEREST INCOME AND NET INTEREST MARGIN

Net interest income, the difference between interest income and interest expense, is the largest component of Sun’s earnings. Net interest margin
(NIM) measures the difference between the interest earning assets yield and the aggregate funding cost. The NIM is calculated as taxable
equivalent net interest income divided by average interest earning assets.

NIM narrowed by 34 basis points to 3.12% for 2001 compared to 3.46% for 2000. That compressicn resulted principally from increased funding
costs incurred during 2000, primarily higher cost certificates of deposit opened in the first half of 2000. Management discontinued that funding
approach in 2000 and refocused on increasing lower cast core deposit balances. During 2001, a substantia! portion of those accounts did mature
and may renew at different interest rates.

Net interest income was $23,735,000 for 2001, compared with $21,735,000 for the prior year. On a taxable equivalent basis, net interest income
increased $2,605,000 to $26,273,000 for 2001 versus $23,668,000 for the prior year. The following table provides additional information related
to net interest income.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND NET INTEREST INCOME
This table presents average daily balance composition and net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis:

(Tn Thousands)

2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

ASSETS
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits $ 37,753 $ 1,345 356% $ 7002 $ 428 6.03% $ 3101 $ 156 5.03%
Loans (net of unearned

income) @ 483,817 40,555 8.38 389,517 35,399 8.86 351,181 30,097 857

Investments:

Taxable 208,346 18,609 6.24 260,337 18,201 6.99 241,875 15,640 6.47

Tax exempt® 21,950 1,723 7.85 17,823 1,465 8.22 30,802 2,755 8.94
Total interest-earning assets 841,866 62,232 7.39 684,769 55,493 8.10 626,959 48,648 7.76
Noninterest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 15,082 12,267 11,291
Bank premises & equipment 13,604 10,659 9,502
Intangible assets 18,000 9,041 9,795
Accrued interest and

other assets 13,298 12,059 7,285
Less:
ALLL (5,807) (4,410} (3,592)
Unamortized loan fees 10 50 (141)
Total assets $896,053 $724,435 $661,099
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW Accounts $136,075 3,285 241% $ 94,374 3,601 3.82% $ 73,240 2,118 2.89%
insured Money Market Accounts 20,945 568 2.7 18,624 724 3.89 21,975 788 3.58
Savings deposits 63,090 1,241 1.97 43,849 830 2.01 45,849 915 2.00
Time deposits 291,327 16,070 5.52 224,690 12,870 573 203,356 11,059 5.46
Short-term borrowings 17,270 430 2.49 16,729 853 510 20,408 843 413
Subordinated debentures 16,051 1,578 9.83 — — — — — —
Other borrowed funds 222,000 12,787 5.76 223,785 12,897 5.76 190,692 10,507 5.51
Total interest-bearing liabilities 766,758 35,859 4.69 622,051 31,825 512 555,520 26,230 473
Noninterest-bearing liabilities

and shareholders’ equity:
Demand deposits 57,478 40,840 38,243
Accrued interest and

other liabilities 3,610 3,776 3,799
Shareholders’ equity 68,207 57,768 63,537
Total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity $896,053 $724,435 $661,099
Interest rate spread 2.70% 2.98% 3.03%
Net interest income/margin $26,273 3.12% $23,668 3.46% $22,418 3.57%

(1) Average loan balances include non-accrual loans and interest income inciudes fees on loans.

(2) Yields on tax exempt loans and investments have been adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent basis using a 34% federal income tax rate.
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VOLUME AND RATES
Changes in interest income and interest expense can resuit from variances in both volume and rates. The following table shows an analysis of the
effect of volume and rate variances on taxable equivalent interest income, interest expense, and net interest income.

(In Thousands)

2001 Compared to 2000 2000 Compared to 1999
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Volume Rate et Volume Rate Net

Interest earned on:

Interest-bearing deposits $ 1,688 $ (771) $ 917 $ 20 $ 71 $ 272
Loans 7,467 (2,311) 5,156 4,142 5,302
Investments:

Taxable 2,653 (2,245) 408 1,308 2,561
Tax exempt 339 (81) 258 (1,161) (1,290)

Total interest-earning assets 12,147 (5,408) 6,739 4,490 6,845

Interest paid on:

NOW Accounts 1,597 (1,913) (316) 609 1,483
Insured Money Market Accounts 91 (247) (156) (121} 57 64)
Savings deposits 388 27) 361 (38) 3 (35)
Time deposits 3,823 (623) 3,200 1,209 602 1,811

Short-term borrowings 28 (451) (423) (152) 162 10
Subordinated debentures 1,578 — 1,578 — — —
Other borrowed funds (110} — (110) 1,824 566 2,390

Total interest-bearing liabilities 7,395 (3,261) 4,134 3,331 2,264 5,595

Net interest income $ 4,752 $(2,147) $2,605 $1,159 $ o9 $1.250

Income on tax exempt loans and investments have been adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent basis using a 34% federal income tax rate.

Changes in interest income and interest expense attributable to the combined impact of both volume and rate were allocated proportionately to the
changes due to volume and the changes due to rate.
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INCOME AND EXPENSE CHANGES
The table below presents the consolidated comparative changes in income and expense, and it reflects changes in average asset and liability
volumes. Tax exempt income is not shown on a tax equivalent basis.

(In Thousands)

2001 Compared to 2000 2000 Compared to 1999
Average Volumes Income/Expense Average Volumes Income/Expense
$Change % Change $Change % Change $Change % Change $Change % Change
Loans, net $ 84,300 21.10%  $4,639 13.67% $48,336 13.76%  $4,123 13.82%
investment securities 42,136 15.15 578 3.02 5,483 2,01 1,711 9.80
- interest-bearing deposits 30,661 394,81 917 214.25 3,991 128,70 272 174.36
Total interest-earning assets $157,097 22.94%  $6,134 11.45% $57,810 922%  $6,106 12.87%
NOW Accounts $41,701 44,19% $ (316) (8.78)% $21,134 28.86%  $1483 70.02%
Insured Meney Market
Accounts 2,321 12.46 (156) (21.55) (3,351} (15.25) 64) B8.12)
Savings deposits 19,241 43.88 361 41.02 {2,000} (4.36) (35) (3.83)
Time deposits 66,637 29.66 3,200 24.86 21,334 10.49 1,811 16.38
Short-term borrowings 541 3.23 (423) (49.59) (3,679 18.03 10 1.19
Subordinated debentures 16,051 100.00 1,578 100.00 — — — —
Other borrowed funds (1,785) .80 (110) (-85) 33,093 17.35 2,390 22.75
Total interest-bearing liabilities  $144,707 23.26%  $4,134 12.99%  $66,531 11.98%  $5,595 21.33%
Net interest income $2,000 9.20% $ 511 2.41%
“““ Provision for loan and lease losses (1,000) 40.00 575 29.87
Net interest income after provision
for loan and lease losses 3,000 15.60 (64) .33
Service charges on deposit accounts 588 44.71 102 8.41
Trust income (152) (16.95) 175 24.24
Net securities gains 2,799 143.17 (3,917) 199.64
Income from insurance subsidiary 87) (32.22) 47 21.08
Gain on sale of branches 4,892 100.00 — —
Other income 175 38.29 (383) (45.60)
Total other operating income 9,508 866.26 (3,976) (80.16)
Salaries and employee benefits 2,361 32.26 1,115 17.97
Net occupancy and equipment expenses 896 48.59 153 9.05
Pennsylvania shares tax 99 16.5 47 8.50
Amortization of intangibles 812 107.55 — —
Expenses of insurance subsidiary (80) (42.11) 61 47.29
Other expenses 1,866 55.09 640 23.30
Total other operating expenses 5,854 42,24 2,016 (16.69)
Income before income tax provision 11,694 90.95 (6,056) {49.72)
Income tax provision 3,344 119.13 (1,899 (65.45)
Net income $3,752 81.60 $(4,157) (47.48)%
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ion and Analysis

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income, excluding gain on sale of branches, increased $3,632,000, or 369.11%, from 2000 to 2001. This increase resulted
largely from the recognition of $844,000 in security gains as compared to a $2,265,000 investment securities portfolio restructuring charge in
the second quarter of 2000. Excluding net securities gains/losses, ather operating income increased $833,000, or 28.34%, from 2000 to 2001.

Service charges on deposit accounts demonstrated continued growth and increased 44.71% in 2001. This growth resulted from increased
transaction account fee income, increased ATM usage fees and the acquisition of nine branches during the first half of 2001, Management will
continue pursuing ATM expansion in high volume locations. Trust income decreased 16.95% during 2001 as the stock market decline caused the
fair market value of the accounts to decline which has a direct result on fees generated.

Other income increased $175,000, or 38.29%, from 2000 to 2001. Gains on loan sales increased $105,000 from 2000 to 2001. In addition,
gains of $71,000 were recognized on the sales of bank premises and equipment. The remaining differences resulted from increased
miscellaneous income and non-yield related loan fees.

Changes in other operating income for the years ended December 31:

(In Thousands)

2001

% Change

2000

% Change

Service charges on deposit accounts

Trust income '

Net securities gains (losses)
Income from insurance subsidiary
Income from investment sales
Gain on sale of branches

Other income

$1,903
745
844
183
309
4,892
632

44.71%
(16.95)
143.17
(32.22)
100.00
100.00
38.29

$1315
897
(1,955)
270

457

8.41%
24.24
(199.64)
21.08

{45.60)

840

Total other operating income

$9,508

866.26%

$ 984

(80.16)%

$4,960

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Other operating expenses increased $5,954,000, or 42.24%, from 2000 to 2001. That increase resulted from several factors: Sun acquired nine
branches (37.5% of the current 24 branch network) during 2001; needed infrastructure improvements were completed; and the former four trade

names (Snyder County Trust, Central Pennsylvania Bank, Watsontown Bank, and Bucktail Bank) were consolidated under the SunBank brand.

Salaries and employee benefits increased $2,361,000, or 32.26%, from 2000 to 2001. The increase is the result of the addition of 66 full-time
equivalent employee’s during 2001 which was the result of the nine new branches. In addition, furniture and equipment expenses increased
47.38% as Sun completed several systems and infrastructure improvements and equipped the new branches. Other expenses increased
$1,866,000 from 2000 to 2001. The largest component was Sun's new marketing program, including enhanced customer analysis systems, the
new corporate identity, consolidated bank names, and advertising. In addition, Sun incurred a significant increase in consulting fees related to

infrastructure improvements.

Changes in other operating expenses for the years ended December 31:

(In Thousands)

2001

% Change

2000

% Change

1999

Salaries and employee benefits
Net occupancy expenses

Furniture and equipment expenses
Pennsylvania shares tax
Amortization of intangibles
Expenses of insurance subsidiary
Other expenses

$ 9,680
985
1,745
699
1,567
110
5,253

32.26%
50.78
47.38
16.50
107.55
(42.11)
55.09

$ 7,319
660
1,184
600
755

190
3,387

17.97%
1.07
14.07
8.50
47.29
23.30

$ 6,204
653
1,038
553
755
129
2,747

Total other operating expenses

$20,049

42.24%

$14,095

16.69%

$12,079

SunBancorp Inc. 48 2001 Annual Report




LIQUIDITY

Management must ensure sufficient liquidity to meet current and future business needs, including customer cash withdrawals and loan fundings.
In addition, management must maintain additional contingency liquidity sources to meet unexpected needs. However, management must deploy
Sun’s fiquidity in a prudently profitable manner.

Sun’s liquidity depends on its ability to acquire funds or convert assets to cash without material loss. Sun’s primary liquidity sources include regular
principal and interest payments on loans and securities, short-term securities, and various borrowing sources. Supplemental liquidity sources
include longer-term securities, lines of credit, and additional sources for new deposits. Notably, management does not consider cash and due from
banks amounts to be liquidity sources. Those amounts are typically needed by banks for daily operations. Refer to Note 10, Borrowed Funds, for
detail regarding Sun’s borrowing capacity.

Management believes there are no identified trends, demands, commitments, or uncertainties that negatively impact liquidity.

MARKET RISK
For Sun, market risk resuits predominantly from interest rate risk and equity price risk. Although Sun’s market risks may change in the future,
management currently focuses its risk management efforts on those two components.

Interest Rate Risk (IRR):

IRR represents the potential current or future earnings and capital volatility due to interest rate changes. Interest rate fluctuations affect earnings by
changing net interest income and other interest-sensitive income and expense levels. Interest rate changes affect capital by altering banks'
economic value of equity (EVE). EVE represents the net present value of all asset, liability, and off-balance sheet cash flows. Interest rate
fluctuations change the present values of those cash flows.

As financial intermediaries, banks can not completely avoid IRR. However, excessive IRR can threaten earnings, capital, liquidity, and solvency. IRR
has many components, including repricing risk, basis risk, yleld curve risk, option risk, and price risk. Sun’s primary, but not sole, IRR source is
balance sheet optionality from residential mortgages and mortgage-backed securities. Those assets may prepay principal at changing speeds
depending on interest rate levels and other factors beyond Sun’s control. When prepayments occur, management must reinvest those cash flows at
current market rates (in loans or securities). Thus, future interest levels and paths may negatively (or positively) affect Sun's net interest income.

Sun seeks to minimize net interest income volatility by carefully measuring, monitoring, and controlling IRR. Sun is implementing a comprehensive
market risk management program to dramatically enhance management's ability to measure, monitor, and control risk. Market risk can result in
fluctuating net interest income due to interest rate and other economic changes. Using simulation models, Sun can measure market risk by
forecasting net interest income volatility under various interest rate scenarios. However, these models depend on many significant assumptions that
may not accurately reflect future conditions.

Rate Shock Forecast at December 31, 2001:
(In Thousands)

Parallel rate shock in basis points (bp)

-200bp* -100bp* Obp +100bp +200bp
Interest income:
Loans $36,411 $37,125 $37,843 $38,562 $39,280
Investments 17,057 17,547 17,752 18,055 18,447
Total interest income 53,468 54,672 55,595 56,617 57,727
Interest expense:
Deposits 12,617 12,831 13,056 13,282 13,507
Borrowings 6,007 7,130 8,476 9,822 11,168
Total interest expense 18,624 19,961 21,532 23,104 24,675
Net interest income $34,844 $34,711 $34,063 $33,513 $33,052

*Given low current levels for certain short-term interest rates, applying declining rate shocks would result in some negative interest rates.
In order to avoid unrealistic conditions and results, floors were set at 0.50%.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

MARK]ET RI[SK (continued)

Equity Price Risk:

Sun's equity securities consist of marketable equities and restricted stock. Marketable equities consist entirely of common stocks, primarily of bank
and bank holding companies. Restricted stock consists almost entirely of FHLB stock. Since FHLB stock is redeemable at par, Sun carries it at cost

and periodically evaluates the stock for impairment. Possible impairment factors include potential dramatic changes ta the housing and residential
mortgage industry or the refated regulatory environment. Management currently does not believe any factors exist to suggest potential impairment.

Bank and bank holding company stocks are subject to general industry risks, including competition from non-bank entities, credit risk, interest

rate risk, and other factors. Individual stocks could suffer price decreases due to circumstances at specific banks. In addition, Sun’s bank stock
investments are concentrated in Pennsylvania entities, so these investments could decline in value if there were a downturn in the state's economy.
Other marketable stocks are comprised of non-bank, exchange-traded stocks that are subject to typical equity risks.

(In Thousands)
December 31, 2001 2000

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Marketable equities $ 3,836 $ 3,102 $ 5289 $ 3,651
Restricted stock 11,114 11,114 12,630 12,630

Total $14,950 $14,296 $18,006 $16,375

Until 2000, Sun had actively invested in both bank and non-bank marketable equities. in 2000, management began a long-term program to
gradually reduce equity investments and risk exposure to a nominal amount. Management has successfully reduced Sun's marketable equity price
risk exposure, as shown in the table below:

December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Cost $3,836,000 $ 5,376,000 $ 8,627,000
Fair Value $3,182,000 $ 3,745,000 $ 6,336,000

Unrealized Gain or (Loss) $ (654,000) $(1,631,000) $(2,291,000)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Sun and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum
capital requirements could prompt regulatory action that, if undertaken, might materially affect Sun’s financial statements. Under requlatory capital
adequacy guidelines, Sun and the Bank must meet specific capital requirements involving quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items (calculated using regulatory accounting practices). All related factors are subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators.

Sun is currently, and has been in the past, designated a well-capitalized institution. Sharehclders’ equity increased $14,984,000 to
$77,511,000 at December 31, 2001, from $62,527,000 at December 31, 2000, The majority of the increase was the result of Sun issuing
stock valued at $8,198,000 for the purchase of Guaranty Bank. Unrealized gains or losses, net of taxes, on securities available for sale are
reported as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders’ equity. Sun had unrealized gains, net of tax,of $2,069,000 at
December 31, 2001, and losses of $1,591,000 at December 31, 2000. During 2001, Sun paid $4,134,000 in cash dividends. Management is
not aware of any events or regulatory restrictions that would have a material effect on Sun's capital adequacy.
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REGULATION

Various federal and state laws and regulations apply to banks and govern business scope, lending, investments, reserves, capital, and other
activities. Banking laws and regulations have been developed primarily to protect depositors rather than shareholders. The Bank’s deposits are
insured by the FDIC to the extent provided by law, for which the Bank must pay a quarterly assessment determined by the FDIC. The Bank is also
subject to numerous state and federal statutes and regulations that affect its business and operations, and is supervised and examined by ong or
more state or federal bank regulatory agencies. The federal state bank regulatory agencies are empowered with considerable supervisory,
examination, and enforcement discretion. Any change in banking law, regulation, policies, examination procedures, or corrective action remedies
could have a material Impact on Sun or the Bank.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA) was enacted in November 1999 and most provisions became effective in March 2000. The GLBA permits
greater affifiation among banks, securities firms, insurance companies, and other companies under a new type of financial services company
known as a “financial holding company.” Financial holding companies may engage in a number of financial activities previously impermissible or
subject to regulatory limitations for bank holding companies, including securities underwriting; dealing and market making; sponsoring mutual
funds and investment companies; insurance underwriting and agency; and merchant banking activities.

Sun has not elected to become a financial holding company. Sun believes the GLBA will not have a material adverse effect on near-term
. operations. However, the GLBA may foster increased consolidation and competition in various financial industry sectors. Although management has
- not identified any negative conditions, such developments might negatively impact Sun in the future.

QUTLOOK

Entering 2001, management recognized challenges associated with potentially deteriorating economic conditions, but also identified many
opportunities for improved performance. Many of those opportunities were seized during 2001, including aggressively pursuing franchise
expansion, new products and services, credit quality improvement, enhanced risk management capabilities, core deposit growth, and new fee
income sources.

Sun believes franchise expansion will enhance shareholder value, increase fong-term earnings potential, and provide additional geographic
diversification. The Guaranty Bank, N.A. and Mellon branch acquisitions expanded the Sun franchise into financial services markets with sizable
growth opportunities.

Management intends to continue building Sun’s brand of community-foctsed commercial banking by:
e Emphasizing customer relationship management.
o Growing Sun's core deposit base.
© Pursuing quality loan growth.
< Increasing fee income and developing new fee income sources.
e Expanding Sun’s markets via expansion or strategic acquisitions.
© Improved operational and service delivery capabilities.

Management will continually challenge its approach to enhance quality, performance, and shareholder value.
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CoMMON STOCK MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
The common stock of Sun Bancorp, Inc. is traded publicly on the NASDAQ national market system under the symboi SUBI.
The high and low bid information does not include retail mark-ups or mark-downs or any commission to the broker-dealer.

2001

2000

Bid Information

Cash Dividends

Bid Information

Cash Dividends

Quarter Ended High

Low Paid

High

Low Paid

March 31 $15.73

June 30 16.50
September 30 17.50

December 31 17.50

$13.38 $.15
14.85 15
14.65 .15
15.50 .16

$19.13
16.81
14.69
14.38

$15.13 $.24
14.19 24
12.63 15
13.38 15

MARKET MAKERS INCLUDE:

Janney Montgomery Scott, Inc.
1801 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-1675
1-800-526-6397

Janney Montgomery Scott, Inc.
Wolfe Plaza

309 N. Fifth Street, Suite C
Sunbury, PA 17801
1-800-831-2741

F. J. Morrissey & Co., Inc.
1700 Market Street, Suite 1420
Philadelphia, PA 19103
1-215-563-8500

Ferris, Baker, Watts

6 Bird Cage Walk
Hollidaysburg, PA 16648
1-800-343-5149

First Tennessee Securities Corp.
845 Crossover Lane

Memphis, TN 38117
1-800-456-5460

AVAILABILITY OF FORM 10-K

Legg Mason

The Stadium Office Park, Suite 201
330 Montage Mountain Road
Scranton, PA 18507
1-800-346-4346

Sandler 0’Neill & Pariners, LP
919 Third Avenue

Sixth Floor

New York, NY 10022
1-800-635-6860

First Union Securities
P.0. Box 1357
Richmond, VA 23218
1-800-627-8625

Ryan, Beck & Co.

80 Main Street

West Crange, NJ 07052
1-800-342-2325

Merrill Lynch

One West Third Street
Williamsport, PA 17701
1-800-937-0769

Herzog, Heine & Geduld, Inc.
2 Penn Center, Suite 1708
Philadelphia, PA 19102
1-215-872-0813

Boenning & Scattergood, Inc.
Four Tower Bridge

200 Barr Harbor Drive, Suite 300
West Conshohocken, PA 19428
1-800-883-8383

Spear, Leeds & Kellog
1900 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
212-422-2405

Upon written request of any shareholder, a copy of the Carporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2001,
including the financial statements, and schedules thereto required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 13a-t
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, may be cbtained, without charge, from Shareholder Services, 2 South Market Street,

P.0. Box 57, Selinsgrove, PA 17870.

INFORMATION ON DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

A voluntary Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available to Sun shareholders. Participants may elect full dividend reinvestment and/or optional cash
payments to purchase additional shares. Information about the plan may be obtained by contacting Sun Bancorp, Inc., Shareholder Services,

2 South Market Street, P.O. Box 57, Selinsgrove, PA 17870.

The Annual Report and other Company reports are also filed electronically through the Electronic Data Gathering Analysis and Retrigval System
(EDGAR) which performs automated coliection, validation, indexing, acceptance, and forwarding of submissions to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and is accessible by the public using the Internet at hitp.//www.sec.gov/edgarhp

The Annual Report, other Company reports, and news releases are available on Sun’s website at http./www.sunbankpa.com
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